
1 

GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  
MONDAY, APRIL 5, 2021  
 
(Please turn off, or silence, all cellphones upon entering the Council Chambers) 
 
Due to COVID-19, attendance at the City Council meeting is limited to 15 citizens in the Council Chambers to 
allow for social distancing.  Overflow seating is available in the Anteroom, located in City Hall and the Large 
Conference Room, City Hall Addition.  The meeting will also be streamed live on the City's Facebook and 
YouTube pages, links are available at https://www.goldsboronc.gov/mayor-of-goldsboro/city-council-
minutes/, and broadcast on the Downtown Center Street speakers.   
 

I. WORK SESSION–5:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET 
 

1. ROLL CALL 
 
2. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
 

3. OLD BUSINESS 
a. Council Committees/GWTA Appointment Discussion (Mayor Pro Tem)  
b. Public Comment Period Discussion (Mayor Pro Tem)  
c. Coronavirus Relief Fund Presentation (Assistant to the City Manager) 
d. Parks and Recreation Marker or Memorial Policy (Parks and Recreation) 

 

4. NEW BUSINESS 
e.    NCLM Voting Delegate (City Manager) 
f.  Informal Bid No. 2021-001-Urgent Repair Program (URP19) Bid Award (Community Relations) 

   
II. CALL TO ORDER – 7:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET 

Invocation (Pastor Dan Baer, St. Luke United Methodist Church) 
Pledge of Allegiance  

 

III. ROLL CALL 
 

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES (*Motion/Second) 
A.1   Minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of February 15, 2021 
A.2   Minutes of the Council Retreat of February 24-25, 2021 

 

V. PRESENTATIONS 
B.     Child Abuse Prevention Month Proclamation  
C.     Week of the Young Child Proclamation 
 

VI. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD  
 

VII. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS (*Motion/Second--Roll Call) 
D. Change Order No. 1 for Wastewater System Improvements Formal Bid No. 2020-002 (Engineering)  
E. Authorization Of An Agreement With Goldsboro Football Club Youth Academy For Use Of Bryan Multi-

Sports Complex And Other City Fields For Soccer Games And Practices (Parks and Recreation) 
F. A Drummers World Drumline Video Promo-Temporary Street Closing (Police)  

 

VIII. ITEMS REQUIRING INDIVIDUAL ACTION (*Motion/Second) 
G. Z-1-21 MC Morgan & Associates (Shannon View) West side of New Hope Road between Cuyler Best Road 

and N. Harding Drive 
            Associated Conditional Use Permit – CU-4-21 Shannon View 84 unit Senior Apartments (Planning) 



2 

H. Z-2-21 MC Morgan & Associates (Tiffany Gardens – Phase II) West side of Thoroughfare Road between 
Central Heights Road and NC Railroad 
     Associated Conditional Use Permit – CU-5-21 Tiffany Gardens – Phase II 84 unit Apartment Complex 

(Planning)  
I.  Z-3-21 Barnes Jewelers Building - South side of Eastgate Drive between Mall Road and Cashwell Drive 

(Planning) 
J.  CU-2-21 A&M Café – (Electronic Gaming Facility) South side of Eastgate Drive between Mall Road and 

Cashwell Drive (Planning)  
K.  CU-3-21 New Hope Place Apartments (Multi-Family Dwellings) – North side of Cuyler Best Road between 

Oxford Boulevard and Glendas Drive (Planning) 

IX. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT

X. MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS’ REPORTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
L. Women’s History Month Proclamation 

XI. CLOSED SESSION

XII. ADJOURN



Requirements for the Placement of Markers Or 
Memorials on City of Goldsboro Park Areas 

THE FOLLOWING CRITERIA AND PROCEDURES FOR THE ESTABLISHMENT OF MARKERS & 
MEMORIALS ON CITY OF GOLDSBORO PARK AREAS HAVE BEEN ADOPTED BY THE GOLDSBORO 
CITY COUNCIL. 

1. All nominations must be submitted, in writing, to the office of the Recrea-
tion & Parks Parks and Recreation Department Director for consideration by
the Recreation & Parks Advisory Commission. Nomination forms are available at
the Parks and Recreation Office, located at 901 E. Ash Street, Goldsboro.

2. Definition:
a. Marker - a monument or plaque commemorating the life of a Goldsboro

resident.
b. Memorial - any piece of equipment, parcel of land, or facility con-

ducive to park development that is marked in a manner appropriate to
eternalize the memory of a deceased individual.

c. Living Memorial - such items as trees, tree groves, arboretums, and
flower or plant beds. 

3. Eligibility Requirements:
a. Markers, memorials, and living memorials shall be allowed on City of

Goldsboro Park areas for individuals who rendered outstanding volun- 
teer service as an appointed member to a City board or Commission or
who were active supporters of leisure activities or who lived ex- 
emplary lives within the community.

b. To be eligible to receive a marker on a City of Goldsboro Park area,
an individual must be deceased and must have been a resident of the
City of Goldsboro for a minimum of ten years.

c. To be eligible to receive a memorial or a living memorial, an in-
dividual must be deceased and a resident of the City of
Goldsboro at some point in their life.

4. Marker Specifications:
a. No marker shall have dimensions greater than 24”x 24”.
b. Markers shall be of stone, marble, bronze, aluminum, or standard plaque

composition metal. Wood or painted markers will not be considered.
c. All lettering must be engraved or permanently attached.
d. Installation must be of a permanent nature and must be in accordance

with the manufacturer’s specifications.
e. No marker or memorial may contain any advertisements.
f. No marker or memorial shall be illuminated.

5. Sponsor Responsibilities -
a. All expenses incurred relative to the purchase and installation of a

marker or memorial shall be borne by the sponsor.
b. Upon establishing a living memorial, the sponsor shall be required to

satisfy one of the following, if needed, for the care and maintenance
of said living memorial • 

ws Item d



1. Establish with the City of Goldsboro a perpetual care fund in an
amount sufficient to meet the annual expenses of caring for the
living memorial. This amount shall be set after consultation
with area nurserymen and shall be renewable on each anniversary 
of the establishment of the living memorial. 

2. The sponsor may execute a legally binding agreement with the City
of Goldsboro whereby said sponsor accepts responsibility for the
care and upkeep of the living memorial, subject to previously 
set standards. 

6. Procedure for the establishment of a marker or memorial:
a. All nominations must be submitted in writing on forms provided by the

Parks and Recreation Department.
b. Nominations must include a full description, including a detailed,

scale drawing of the proposed marker. Exact wording proposed for
the marker must be included.

c. Nominations must specify the park area and exact location of the
proposed marker or memorial. A site visit with the Director of
the Parks and Recreation Department or her/his representative
will be required as a follow up to this written information.
 The Recreation & Parks Advisory Commission reserves the right to
approve make a recommendation on the location of each marker or
memorial.

7. Approval
a. All nomination proposals shall be acted on by the Recreation & Parks

Advisory Commission within 90 days of receipt of the fully completed
proposal.

b. The Recreation & Parks Advisory Commission reserves the right to
recommend approval or disapproval of any or all proposals.

c. The recommendation will then go before the Goldsboro City
Council for their decision on the matter.

d. Appeal of a decision by the' Recreation & Parks Advisory Commission
shall be made in writing directly to the Goldsboro City Council.

e. Any marker or memorial may be removed if it is deemed unsafe by
Parks and Recreation staff or for cause upon the recommendation of 
the Recreation & Parks Advisory Council Commission and the
approval of the Goldsboro City Council.



CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT 

Park Area Marker/Memorial Nomination Proposal 

1. Sponsor Information:

Name_________________________________________________ 

Address______________________________________________ 

Phone Number_________________________________________ 

2. Honoree Information:

Name_________________________________________________ 

Address______________________________________________ 

Date of Death________________________________________ 

Years lived in Goldsboro__________ 

3. Please list all appropriate volunteer services the honoree may have con- 
tributed to City Boards or Commissions, civic organizations, public
agencies, or to the community.

_____________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

4. Please describe, in detail, your reasons for honoring this individual.  Use
additional sheets if necessary.

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

5. Please indicate on which park the proposed marker/memorial is to be placed
and describe the exact location within this park. A site visit with the
Director of the Parks and Recreation Department or her/his representative



will be required before this proposal can be considered by the Recreation 
Parks Advisory Commission. 

______________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

6. Please provide a detailed, scaled drawing of the proposed marker.  Include
exact lettering proposed. If a memorial or living memorial is proposed,
please give a detailed written description indicate choice from catalog
provided.

_________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________

Signature of Sponsor___________________________________________ 

Date___________________________ 



ws Item f



1 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL HELD 
FEBRUARY 15, 2021 

WORK SESSION 

The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in a Work Session in the 
Large Conference Room, City Hall Addition, 200 North Center Street, at 5:00 p.m. on February 
15, 2021 with attendance as follows: 

Present: Mayor Chuck Allen, Presiding 
Mayor Pro Tem David Ham  
Councilmember Bill Broadaway 
Councilmember Taj Polack 
Councilmember Brandi Matthews 
Councilmember Gene Aycock  
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney 
Tim Salmon, City Manager  
Melissa Capps, City Clerk 

Call to Order.  Mayor Allen called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 

Adoption of the Agenda.  Upon motion of Mayor Pro Tem Ham, seconded by 
Councilmember Broadaway and unanimously carried, Council adopted the agenda. 

FY 18-19 Audit Update.  Mr. John Frank and Mr. Chad Cook with Dixon, Hughes and 
Goodman joined by Webex.  Mr. Frank provided an update on the status of the FY 18-19 Audit.  
He stated when they previously met with Council, they were hoping to have the audit finalized in 
January, however, the city identified some additional issues related to prior years that prevented 
us from finishing up the audit.  As I mentioned in the last call, fortunately the net result of these 
prior period adjustments has been an increase to the City’s previously reported position and fund 
balance and the net result of the items discovered in January continue this trend.  Additionally, 
there has still been no cases of fraud or misappropriation of assets in prior years.  Tim, Catherine 
and I had a call last week with Susan McCullen at the Local Government Commission.  The 
purpose of the call was an update on the audit and to discuss in detail some of the issues 
encountered.  They are up to date on things.   

Mayor Allen asked if the audit would be wrapped up in the next couple of weeks.  Mr. Frank 
stated hopefully sometime in March.   

Tourism Board Appointment Discussion.  Ms. Capps shared the Tourism Council had 
a member to resign on Wednesday, January 27.  You have the 2 current applications for the 
hotelier position in your folders.   The Tourism board recommends the appointment of Tyrone 
Barrett. 

Council agreed with the Tourism Council’s recommendation.  Staff will bring back a resolution 
at the next Council meeting appointing Mr. Barrett.   

Consent Agenda Review.  Each item was reviewed.  Additional discussion included the 
following: 

Item E. Resolution to Approve New Insurance Broker for the Upcoming FY 21-22 
Budget Year.  Upon motion of Councilmember Matthews, seconded by Councilmember Polack 
and unanimously carried, Item E. Resolution to Approve New Insurance Broker for the 
Upcoming FY 21-22 Budget Year was moved to items requiring individual action. 

Closed Session Held.  Upon motion of Councilmember Aycock, seconded by 
Councilmember Polack and unanimously carried, Council convened into Closed Session to 
discuss an a personnel matter, a litigation matter and an economic development matter.     

Council came out of Closed Session. 

Item A.1



2 
 
 
 

 
 

 There being no further business, the meeting recessed at 6:15 p.m. until the 7:00 p.m. 
meeting. 
 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 
 The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in regular session in 
Large Conference Room, City Hall Annex, 200 North Center Street, at 7:00 p.m. on February 15, 
2021 with attendance as follows: 
 
 Present:  Mayor Chuck Allen, Presiding 

Mayor Pro Tem David Ham 
Councilmember Bill Broadaway 

   Councilmember Taj Polack 
Councilmember Brandi Matthews 
Councilmember Gene Aycock 

 
 Mayor Allen called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

 
Reverend Phyllis Vail with St. Paul Methodist Church provided the invocation.  The 

Pledge of Allegiance followed.  
 
Approval of Minutes.  Upon motion of Councilmember Broadaway, seconded by 

Councilmember Aycock and unanimously carried, Council approved the Minutes of the Work 
Session and Regular Meeting of February 1, 2021. 

 
Resolution Expressing Appreciation of for Services Rendered by Carol Gillis an 

Employee of the City of Goldsboro for More Than 8 Years.  Carol Gillis retires on March 1, 
2021 as an Administrative Assistant III with the Public Works Department of the City of 
Goldsboro with more than 8 years of service.  Carol began her career on March 7, 2012 as a 
Senior Administrative Support Specialist with the Public Works Department.  On January 1, 
2016, Carol’s position was reclassified to Administrative Assistant III with the Public Works 
Department where she has served until her retirement.  Carol has proven herself to be a dedicated 
and efficient public servant who has gained the admiration and respect of her fellow workers and 
the citizens of the City of Goldsboro.  The Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro are 
desirous, on behalf of themselves, City employees and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro, of 
expressing to Carol Gillis their deep appreciation and gratitude for the service rendered by her to 
the City over the years.  The Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, 
we express to Carol our very best wishes for success, happiness, prosperity and good health in 
her future endeavors and this Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the 
City of Goldsboro. 
 

Vacant Council Seat For District 1.  Discussion was held regarding information 
requested by Councilmember Matthews.  Councilmember Broadaway made a motion to start the 
ballot process.  Councilmember Aycock seconded the motion.  Additional discussion was held 
regarding correspondence received.  Mayor Allen called for a vote.  Mayor Allen, Mayor Pro 
Tem Ham, Councilmembers Broadaway and Aycock voted in favor of the motion.  The motion 
carried 4:2. 
 
Ballots were passed out.  Each Councilmember marked their ballot.  The City Clerk read the 
following votes aloud: 
 
Mayor Allen – Hiawatha Jones 
Mayor Pro Tem Ham – Hiawatha Jones 
Councilmember Broadaway – Hiawatha Jones 
Councilmember Polack – Yvonnia Moore 
Councilmember Matthews – Yvonnia Moore 
Councilmember Aycock – Hiawatha Jones 
 



3 
 
 
 

Councilmember Broadaway made a motion Council accept the computation of votes as stated 
and that candidate that received majority of the votes be appointed to the vacant seat for District 
1.  Mayor Pro Tem Ham seconded the motion.  Discussion followed.  Mayor Allen called for a 
vote.  Mayor Allen, Mayor Pro Tem Ham, Councilmembers Broadaway and Aycock voted in 
favor of the motion.  The motion carried 4:2. 

 
Resolution Expressing Appreciation of for Services Rendered by Carol Gillis an 

Employee of the City of Goldsboro for More Than 8 Years.  Ms. Capps asked if Council 
could take a vote on the previously read Resolution.  Upon motion of Councilmember Polack, 
seconded by Councilmember Aycock and unanimously carried, Council adopted the following 
entitled Resolution.   

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-6 “RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION 

FOR SERVICES RENDERED BY CAROL GILLIS AS AN EMPLOYEE OF THE CITY 
OF GOLDSBORO FOR MORE THAN 8 YEARS” 

 
CU-1-21 Anthony Mathis (EZ Choice)-North side of E. US 70 Hwy between Miller’s 

Chapel Road and Carriage Road.  Public Hearing Held.  Applicant requests a Conditional 
Use Permit for the installation of a prefabricated accessory structure used for the operation and 
expansion of an existing automotive service center located in the Airport-Business zoning 
district.  Services include automobile window tinting, automobile inspections and tire sales. As 
part of the request, separate site plan approval is required. 

 
Frontage:   Approximately 200 ft.  
Area:    46,295 sq. ft. or 1.06 acres 
Zone:    Airport Business 
Overlay:   APZ-I/Noise Contour 75-80dnl/80-85dnl 
  

In June of 2009, City Council approved a conditional use permit, as well as, site and landscape 
plans to allow an automobile window tinting operation upon the subject property. A modification 
of the protected street yard width from 8 ft. to 2.5 ft. was also approved. 

 
As a condition of the permit issuance, City Council required the extension of a vehicular surface 
buffer across the easternmost driveway which was required to be closed by NCDOT limiting 
access to the property from two driveways to one along E. US 70 Hwy.  
 
The submitted site plan indicates two existing buildings (673 sq. ft. for office use and 900 sq. ft. 
for automobile tinting and inspections) totaling approximately 1,573 sq. ft.  An additional 930 sq. 
ft. prefabricated and enclosed metal building is proposed that will serve as an additional service 
bay for automobile window tinting. 

  
Number of employees: 2  
Hours of Operation:  Monday-Friday 9:00 a.m. - 6:00 p.m.  

 
An existing 35 ft. wide driveway cut provides access to the site off E. US 70 Hwy.   

 
Parking shall be based on 1 space per working bay, plus one per employee.  A total of 16 spaces 
have been provided to include one handicap accessible parking space. 

  
The proposed use does not require additional landscaping for the site.  

 
The subject property falls within SJAFB Accident Potential Zone (APZ-I) and 75-80/ 80-84 day-
night average sound level (DNL) noise zones.  Base officials have been contacted and 
recommend that noise attenuation measures be incorporated into the design and construction of 
any new structure where the public is received.   

 
In addition, base officials have indicated that retail sales are an incompatible land use in the 80-
84 day-night average sound level (DNL) noise zone.  Applicant has been informed that tire sales 
must be conducted within the 75-80 day-night average sound (DNL) zone in order to continue 
the existing use in the future. 

 



4 
 
 
 

City water and sewer are available to serve the property.  The property is not located in a Special 
Flood Hazard Area. 

 
Mayor Allen opened the public hearing and the following person spoke after being properly 
sworn in: 
 
Anthony Mathis stated I am a subcontractor that will be building the metal building.  I am the 
owner of Mathis Masonry out of Warsaw, NC.  We have been in business 30 years.  Any 
questions? 
 
Councilmember Broadaway stated it looks like you have some pretty cars out there.  Mr. Mathis 
stated yes sir. 
 
Councilmember Aycock asked do you run the lot or does someone else.  Mr. Mathis stated no sir 
I am not the owner, I am the contractor.   
 
Mayor Allen asked where is the owner.  Mr. Mathis stated here in Goldsboro.   
 
No one else spoke and the public hearing was closed.   
 
No action necessary.  The Planning Commission will have a recommendation for the Council’s 
meeting on March 1, 2021.  

 
Consent Agenda - Approved as Recommended. City Manager, Timothy Salmon, 

presented the Consent Agenda.  All items were considered to be routine and could be enacted 
simultaneously with one motion and a roll call vote.  If a Councilmember so requested, any 
item(s) could be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and considered separately.  
Mr. Salmon reminded Council Item E. Resolution to Approve New Insurance Broker for the 
Upcoming FY21-22 Budget Year was moved to Items Requiring Individual Action.  In that 
event, the remaining item(s) on the Consent Agenda would be acted on with one motion and roll 
call vote.  Mayor Pro Tem Ham moved the items on the Consent Agenda, Items F, G, H, I, J, K 
and L be approved as recommended by the City Manager and staff.  The motion was seconded 
by Councilmember Broadaway.   
 
Councilmember Matthews asked for additional information regarding Item J. Contract Award for 
Consulting Services – Annual Action Plan.  Mr. Guthrie shared information regarding the 
selection process for Two Rivers Development Partners, LLC. 
 
A roll call vote resulted Mayor Allen, Mayor Pro Tem Ham, Councilmember Broadaway, Polack 
and Councilmember Aycock voting in favor of the motion.  Councilmember Matthews voted 
against the motion.  The motion passed 5:1.  The items on the Consent Agenda were as follows: 
 

Change Order No. 1 – Water Treatment Plant Plate Settler Project: WIF 1942 
Formal Bid No. 2019 ‐ 004.  Resolution Adopted.  The Plate Settler project consists of 
installation of inclined plate settlers into the seven sedimentation basins at the Water Treatment 
Plant. This project will increase settling and increase plant capacity from 12-million gallons per 
day to 14-million gallons per day.  
 
Staff have worked with the contractor and engineering consultant on a change order for project 
completion due to manufacturing delays from COVID-19, revised the location of the wash water 
supply line, and revised drawings. Turner Murphy Company submitted an estimated cost of 
$6,405.00 resulting in a 0.47% change to the original contract amount. 
 
The manufacturing delays and additional work will require the contract final completion time to 
be extended by 100 days. The amended contract final completion date for the remaining work is 
May 14, 2021.  
 
Staff recommends issuing a change order to the current contract with Turner Murphy Company 
for the Plate Settler Project. We have reviewed this change order with the Finance Director and 
determined that funds are available from SRF loan reimbursement.  
 



5 
 
 
 

It is recommended the City Council adopt the following entitled Resolution authorizing the City 
Manager to execute a change order for $6,405.00 with Turner Murphy Company, contingent 
upon DWI approval.  Consent Agenda Approval.  Ham/Broadaway (5 Ayes:1 Nay) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-9 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE A CHANGE ORDER WITH TURNER MURPHY COMPANY. FOR 
WATER TREATMENT PLANT PLATE SETTLER PROJECT: WIF 1942 FORMAL BID NO. 
2019 ‐ 004” 
 

Change Order No. 1 – Water Treatment Plant Plate Settler Project: WIF 1942 
Consultant Services.  Resolution Adopted.  The Plate Settler project consists of installation of 
inclined plate settlers into the seven sedimentation basins at the Water Treatment Plant. This 
project will increase settling and increase plant capacity from 12-million gallons per day to 14-
million gallons per day.  
 
Case specific analysis has being conducted on half of the installed structural supports for the 
plate settler pack beams. Required minimum anchor depths have not been met, due to hitting 
existing reinforcing in the concrete walls requiring a shallower depth than what was originally 
specified.  
 
This additional analysis was not able to be foreseen in advance and is beyond the current scope 
and fees of the design and construction phase of the project.  
 
Staff recommends issuing a change order to the current Purchase Order Agreement P2007455 
with AH Environmental Consultants, Inc. for the Water Treatment Plant Plate Settler Project. We 
have reviewed this change order with the Finance Director and determined that funds are 
available from SRF loan reimbursement.  
 
It is recommended the City Council adopt the following entitled Resolution authorizing the City 
Manager to execute a change order for $4,812.50 with AH Environmental Consultants, Inc., 
contingent upon DWI approval. Consent Agenda Approval.  Ham/Broadaway (5 Ayes: 1 Nay) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-10 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE A CHANGE ORDER WITH AH ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANTS, INC. 
FOR WATER TREATMENT PLANT PLATE SETTLER PROJECT: WIF 1942 
CONSULTANT SERVICES” 
 

42nd Annual Greater Goldsboro Road Run – Temporary Street Closing.  Approved.  
An application was received from the Sunrise Kiwanis of Goldsboro, requesting permission to 
hold their 42nd Annual Greater Goldsboro Road Run on Saturday, April 17, 2021 from 7:00 a.m. 
to 11:00 a.m. 
 
The race is scheduled to begin at Spruce Street on Center Street and end between Chestnut Street 
and Spruce Street on Center Street and runs through the downtown area of Walnut Street, 
Evergreen Street, and Andrews Street, Berry Street, Claiborne Street, Mulberry Street, and Pine 
Street.  The Police, Fire, Public Works and Downtown Goldsboro offices have been notified of 
this request. 
 
The race has three race routes they will be using for the 10K, 5K, and 1-mile runs.  All three 
routes will start and finish in the same area and will have staggered start times. The time 
requested for the closing is from 7:00 a.m. to 11:00 a.m.  
 
Staff recommends approval of this request subject to the following conditions: 

1. All intersections remain open for Police Department traffic control. 
2. A 14-foot fire lane is maintained in the center of the street to provide access for fire 

and emergency vehicles. 
3. All activities, changes in plans, etc. will be coordinated with the Police Department. 
4. The Police, Fire, Public Works and Downtown Goldsboro offices are to be involved 

in the logistical aspects of this event. 
 



6 
 
 
 

It is recommended Council approve the street closing of sections of Center Street at Pine Street, 
Spruce Street, Chestnut Street, Walnut Street, and Mulberry Street for the 42nd Annual Greater 
Goldsboro Road Run event 7:00 a.m. to 11:00 a.m. on Saturday, April 17, 2021.  Consent 
Agenda Approval.  Ham/Broadaway (5 Ayes: 1 Nay) 
 

Adoption of the Revised City of Goldsboro Emergency Operations Plan.  Resolution 
Adopted.  The City of Goldsboro activates the Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) to assist with 
the management of incidents/events that threaten to overwhelm the day-to-day functions and/or 
capabilities of local government. Through effective leadership, the emergency management 
function maintains a state of readiness in preparation for the potential threat and/or occurrence of 
any natural or man-made incident/event that could adversely impact the City of Goldsboro      
 
The EOP reflects local operations and the manner in which coordination with County and other 
outside resources will take place. Through adoption, the City becomes better prepared to respond 
to any emergency. The plan identifies key roles and responsibilities, defines primary and support 
roles of departments, outlines the steps for coordination, and establishes an incident management 
system consistent with the National Incident Management System.  
  
It is recommended Council adopt the following entitled Resolution for the adoption of the 
revised Emergency Operations Plan be approved.  Consent Agenda Approval.  Ham/Broadaway 
(5 Ayes: 1 Nay) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-11 “RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE REVISED CITY OF 
GOLDSBORO EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN”  
 

Contract Award for Consulting Services – Annual Action Plan.  Resolution 
Adopted.  The City of Goldsboro seeks consultant services to produce an Annual Action Plan 
(AAP) describing the planned use of local, state and federal funds for housing and community 
development purposes throughout the city. This AAP will be closely aligned with the current 
five-year Consolidated Plan, as well as the Analysis of Impediments currently contracted with 
another consulting firm. 
 
Two Rivers Development Partners proposes an engagement of up to four months to manage the 
process of soliciting resident and stakeholder engagement, producing an AAP, and working with 
City staff to create a final plan suitable for City Council approval and submission to HUD. 
 
The engagement includes: 

• Initial meeting with client to determine expectations, roles, process, and schedule 
• Review of Consolidated Plan and previous AAPs 
• Develop compliance and meeting calendar in coordination with City staff 
• Ensure compliance with local and HUD requirements 
• Conduct up to 12 stakeholder/partner interviews 
• Coordinate with consultants creating the Analysis of Impediments to ensure that the 

documents relate to each other and the Consolidated Plan 
• Conduct at least two virtual public hearings 
• Present AAP at City Council meetings (up to 3 times) 

 
The engagement begins February 15, 2021 and ends May 31, 2021. 
 
It is recommended City Council adopt the following entitled Resolution authorizing the Mayor 
and City Clerk to execute a contract not to exceed $20,000 with Two Rivers Development 
Partners, LLC, for the Annual Action Plan.  Consent Agenda Approval.  Ham/Broadaway (5 
Ayes: 1 Nay) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-12 “RESOLUTION AWARDING AND AUTHORIZING THE 
EXECUTION OF A CONTRACT FOR THE ANNUAL ACTION PLAN” 
 

Revised Council Meeting Dates for 2021.  Approved.  The City Council Meeting dates 
for 2021 were adopted on November 16, 2020.   
 
Proposed retreat dates were listed as: 



7 
 
 
 

 
• February 8 and 9 (Monday and Tuesday)  
• February 24 and 25 (Wednesday and Thursday) 

 
The Council has confirmed retreat dates for February 24 and 25, 2021. 
             
It is recommended Council adopt the revised Council Meeting schedule to list retreat dates as 
February 24 and February 25, 2021. Consent Agenda Approval.  Ham/Broadaway (5 Ayes: 1 
Nay) 
 

Departmental Monthly Reports.  Accepted as Information.  The various departmental 
reports for January 2021 were submitted for the Council’s approval. It was recommended 
Council accept the reports as information. Consent Agenda Approval.  Ham/Broadaway (5 Ayes: 
1 Nay) 
  

End of Consent Agenda. 
 

Resolution to Approve New Insurance Broker for the Upcoming FY21-22 Budget 
Year.  Resolution Adopted.  The City last conducted a search for insurance brokerage services 
in April, 2017, at which time Crawford Henderson was selected to represent the City for all 
insurance coverage except for liquor liability and excess worker’s compensation.  The process 
was assisted with the help of Esses Consulting.  In the agreement entered into at that time the 
commission to the insurance broker was paid by the insurance company, and included in the cost 
of premiums paid by the City.   
  
The proposal period was through the end of fiscal year 2020, however due to staffing and 
workload, we extended the period to the end of fiscal year 2021. 
 
The City carries multiple types of insurance to hedge against peril and risk such as general 
liability, auto, property, crime, inland marine, professional, umbrella, cyber threats, liquor, flood, 
drone and excess worker’s comp.  For FY21, the cost totaled approximately $690,000 for 
insurance coverage, so the process of selecting a broker is an important financial decision.  
 
The Finance staff has worked our insurance consultant, Riskversity, for the past nine months to 
develop a Request for Proposal to address the needs and issues of the City.  We were concerned 
about risk management services, training, and technology. We moved away from the model of 
commissions that were inclusive of the premium, and requested a fee based approach. 
 
 The recommendation letter from the insurance consultant summarizing the results. 
  
Councilmember Aycock made a motion to adopt the following entitled resolution to approve the 
selection of Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services to act as the insurance broker for the 
City of Goldsboro beginning FY21-22.  The motion was seconded by Councilmember 
Broadaway.  Mayor Allen, Mayor Pro Tem Ham, Councilmembers Broadaway and Aycock 
voted in favor of the motion.  Councilmembers Polack and Matthews voted against the motion.  
Motion passed 4:2. 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-13 “A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO 
EXECUTE A CONTRACT FOR INSURANCE BROKERAGE SERVICES BETWEEN THE 
CITY OF GOLDSBORO AND ARTHUR J. GALLAGHER RISK MANAGEMENT 
SERVICES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2022” 
 

Amending a Grant Project Fund Ordinance – Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) and HOME Investment Partnership Program (HOME) Special Revenue 
Fund (C2101).  Ordinance Adopted.  On August 21, 2019, City Council authorized the 
acceptance of an Urgent Repair Program (URP1909) grant from the North Carolina Housing 
Finance Agency in the amount of $100,000 to assist with repair of twelve eligible low income 
homeowners for an amount up to $10,000 per home to prevent displacement.  The grant period is 
from July 12, 2019 and has an extended date of June 30, 2021.  There is no match required for 
the grant.   This grant will be managed by the Community Relations department. 
  



8 
 
 
 

This fund has been established as a grant project (G.S. § 159-13.2) fund to satisfy the federal 
grant requirements which call for the City to establish a means of tracking the expenditures for 
Single Audit purposes so that external auditors can verify compliance with the various Federal 
and State grant guidelines in the compliance supplements.  Staff requests that the Council 
appropriate expenditures in the amount of $100,000.  This will be funded with State grant 
revenue. 
  
Upon motion of Mayor Pro Tem Ham, seconded by Councilmember Polack and unanimously 
carried, Council adopted the following entitled Grant Project Ordinance amendment for the 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME Investment Partnership Program 
(HOME) Special Revenue Fund (C2101) in the amount of $100,000. 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-2 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE GRANT PROJECT FUND 
FOR THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) AND HOME 
INVESTMENT PARTNERSHIP PROGRAM SPECIAL REVENUE FUND (C2101)” 
 

City Manager’s Report.  Mr. Salmon stated staff is working on the agenda and 
presentations for Council’s Retreat on the 24th and 25th. Registration is open for youth spring 
sports through the end of February.  I’d also like to highlight Goldsboro’s Fire Department’s 
Annual Report for 2020 is complete and on the website.   

 
Mayor and Councilmembers’ Reports and Recommendations.   Resolution 

Expressing Appreciation for Services Rendered by Stanley Smith as an Employee of the 
City Of Goldsboro for More Than 39 Years.  Resolution Adopted.  Stanley “Stan” Smith 
retires on March 1, 2021 as an Engineering Technician with the Engineering Department of the 
City of Goldsboro with more than 39 years of service.  Stan began his career on July 29, 1981 as 
an Engineering Aide 1 with the Public Utilities Department.  On October 14, 1981, Stan was 
promoted to Engineering Aide II with the Public Utilities Department.  On July 15, 1998, Stan 
was promoted to Engineering Technician II with the Engineering Department.  On August 1, 
2007, Stan’s position was reclassified to Engineering Technician where he has served until his 
retirement.  Stan has proven himself to be a dedicated and efficient public servant who has 
gained the admiration and respect of his fellow workers and the citizens of the City of 
Goldsboro.  The Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro are desirous, on behalf of 
themselves, City employees and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro, of expressing to Stan 
Smith their deep appreciation and gratitude for the service rendered by him to the City over the 
years.  The Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, express to Stan 
our very best wishes for success, happiness, prosperity and good health in his future endeavors. 
 
Upon motion of Councilmember Aycock, seconded by Councilmember Broadaway and 
unanimously carried, Council adopted the following entitled Resolution. 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-7 “RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION 
FOR SERVICES RENDERED BY STANLEY SMITH AS AN EMPLOYEE OF THE CITY OF 
GOLDSBORO FOR MORE THAN 39 YEARS” 
 

Resolution Expressing Appreciation for Services Rendered by James Boyd as an 
Employee of the City of Goldsboro for More than 11 Years.  Resolution Adopted.  James 
Boyd retires on March 1, 2021 as an Operator IV at the Water Reclamation Facility with the 
Public Utilities Department of the City of Goldsboro with 11 years of service.  James began his 
career on February 10, 2010 as an Operator I at the Water Reclamation Facility with the Public 
Utilities Department.  On February 10, 2012, James’ position was reclassified to an Operator II 
with the Public Utilities Department.  On January 8, 2014, James’ position was reclassified to an 
Operator III with the Public Utilities Department.  On July 1, 2016, James’ position was 
reclassified to an Operator IV with the Public Utilities Department where he has served until his 
retirement.  James has proven himself to be a dedicated and efficient public servant who has 
gained the admiration and respect of his fellow workers and the citizens of the City of 
Goldsboro.  The Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro are desirous, on behalf of 
themselves, City employees and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro, of expressing to James 
Boyd their deep appreciation and gratitude for the service rendered by him to the City over the 
years.  The Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, express to James 
our very best wishes for success, happiness, prosperity and good health in his future endeavors. 



9 
 
 
 

 
Upon motion of Mayor Allen, seconded by Councilmember Broadaway and unanimously 
carried, Council adopted the following entitled Resolution. 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-8 “RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION FOR 
SERVICES RENDERED BY JAMES BOYD AS AN EMPLOYEE OF THE CITY OF 
GOLDSBORO FOR MORE THAN 11 YEARS” 
 

Councilmember Aycock stated no comment. 
 

Councilmember Matthews stated I would like to take a second to apologize to those 
people who thought it was necessary to send emails to the Council, apologize to the people who 
signed the petition, to Commissioner Williams for taking time out to write this letter.  I do not 
want you for one second to feel like your voice does not matter because it still does.  What that 
says to you now is we have more work to do.  It was clear that the best candidate was not chosen.  
Unfortunately, hate won again.  We heard a councilmember ask the candidates, if they were 
having to make a choice that was best for the city and their friends didn’t agree, would they stand 
on truth and stand with their decision.  You saw that councilmember do the exact opposite of 
that, he did not make the best decision for the City of Goldsboro.  Publically, told the people, 
certain people do not matter.  If anyone comes in opposition in the majority of this board, they do 
not stand a fair chance in being heard.  We had a councilmember make accusatory comments but 
he could not produce evidence for so it is my assumption he is not being honest in his claims.  
Let’s think about it for a second, let’s look at the decisions made that benefit them, changed the 
public comment period to once a month, in a way to stifle voices, tried to ban a city resident 
from entering city property, and they also decided to put the power in their own hands to choose 
the person who will ultimately fill the seat.  I watched the February 1st meeting, the energy 
shifted when Ms. Moore walked in the room, some of your mannerism changed and your 
obvious decline in interest.  One councilmember, Councilmember Ham could not look her in the 
eyes until he thought he had a dagger that would pierce her skin.  Our Mayor could not greet her 
when she walked in the room.  I am disappointed.  We have a lot of work to do.  You missed an 
opportunity to do the right thing.  You failed again.  I am going to be updating my 
Councilwoman page with contact information, COVID and community events that I do not want 
you to miss out on.  I also have an event planned March 20th, so be on the look out for that 
information.  
 

Councilmember Polack shared information from Ms. Georgia Dees at the Art Council.  
Community Mural Project Art brings people together. It inspires. It gives hope. LOVE and 
CommUnity is the centerpiece of a public art project the Arts Council of Wayne County is 
undertaking with local artist Max Mozingo, thanks to a grant from the North Carolina Arts 
Council. Max is creating the design on three large panels, and we're inviting the public to come 
downtown, grab a brush, have fun and take ownership in the project!  All ages are welcome to 
participate in this free public art event at 102 N. John St. in downtown Goldsboro! The event will 
take place Feb. 19-21 at the following times: Friday - Noon to 3 p.m. and 5 p.m.-7 p.m; Saturday 
- 10 a.m.-4 p.m.; Sunday - 1 p.m.-4 p.m.  I would also like to thank Chief Dixon for the amazing 
work he has done in the city as Fire Chief in the short amount of time.  In closing, I felt it would 
be fitting during Black History Month to acknowledge the history of the City of Goldsboro by 
recognizing the first African American Female to serve on the Council.  Councilmember Polack 
presented Councilmember Matthews with a plaque. 
 
 Councilmember Broadaway stated Councilmember Matthews I appreciate where you are 
coming from but I take some exceptions to your remarks.  Your remarks show a basic lack of 
respect for experience, time and the things members of this Council has done.  It is also making 
generalization remarks and pointing out different people.  We want to work together, this 
constant divisiveness is getting old to me.  Because we don’t do what you want to do, there is no 
reason we are being divisive, we are being old, bias or anything else.  We are doing the best job 
we can.   
 
 Mayor Pro Tem Ham stated no comment. 
 
 Mayor Allen thanked everyone for coming.  
 



10 
 
 
 

 The meeting adjourned at 7:58 p.m. 
 
 
       ___________________________ 
       Chuck Allen  
       Mayor   
 
       ___________________________ 
       Melissa Capps, MMC/NCCMC  
       City Clerk  



1 

MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL RETREAT OF MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL HELD 
FEBRUARY 24-25, 2021 

FEBRUARY 24, 2021 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, for their 
Annual Retreat beginning February 24, 2021 at 9:00 a.m. in the Large Conference Room, 
City Hall Addition, 200 North Center Street, Goldsboro, North Carolina with attendance 
as follows: 

Present: Mayor Chuck Allen, Presiding 
Mayor Pro Tem David Ham  
Councilmember Hiawatha Jones 
Councilmember Bill Broadaway  
Councilmember Taj Polack 
Councilmember Brandi Matthews 
Councilmember David Ham 
Councilmember Gene Aycock 
Tim Salmon, City Manager 
Melissa Capps, City Clerk 
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney  

Call to Order.  The meeting was called to order by Mayor Allen at 9:00 a.m. 

Adoption of the Agenda.  Upon motion of Councilmember Aycock, seconded by 
Councilmember Broadaway and unanimously carried, Council adopted the agenda. 

Swearing In New Councilmember.  The Honorable Senator Don Davis administered the 
oath of office to Ms. Hiawatha Jones.   

Strategic Plan Update.  Mr. Salmon shared the City’s Strategic Plan identifies the most 
significant measures to accomplish, the vision, mission, values and goals established by 
the elected officials.   

The City’s Strategic Plan is an organizational plan intended to help the City make the 
most efficient use of our resources in becoming the standard for public service in North 
Carolina. The City Council created the goals based on survey input from citizens and city 
employees. The Strategic Plan incorporates departmental metrics that are tracked and 
measured for accuracy. The values of being customer-focused, having transparency and 
accountability are critical success factors for achieving the city’s target goals. 

Mr. Octavius Murphy reviewed each measure associated with the following goals: 

• Safe and Secure Community Strong
• Diverse Economy
• Exceptional Quality of Life
• Racial and Cultural Harmony
• Model for Excellence in Government

Councilmember Polack requested information on diversity in promotions. 

Additional information regarding the City’s Strategic Plan can be found on the city’s 
website at www.goldsboronc.gov.   

Public Utilities Rate Update.  Mr. Mike Wagner provided the following information: 
• Study Approach/Overview
• Last Year Projections
• Addressing Revenue Shortfalls

o A 50% rate increase was needed to fund all debt service, operations and
maintenance costs, and the capital improvement plan.

Item A.2 

http://www.goldsboronc.gov/


2 
 
 

o Stantec initially recommended a plan that included an upfront rate increase 
of 25% in fiscal year (FY) 2021, followed by additional significant rate 
increases, in order to fully fund all capital and expenditure requirements 
and build targeted reserve balances in each year of the forecast. 

o The adopted financial management plan includes a rate revenue 
adjustment for FY 2021 of 17.5%, requested by City staff, to address near-
term revenue shortfalls. Given the level of the increase, additional rate 
adjustments will be required after the current fiscal year and should 
incorporate a cost-of-service and rate structure analysis to help the Utility 
meet its financial requirements in the near-term as well as in the future. 

• Last Year Predictions 
• What did 17.5% get? 

o Covered current Operations & Maintenance and Debt Service Expenses 
o WTP & Water Distribution System 
o Rehabilitated and Repainted New Hope Elevated Tank (Repairs to other 3-

tanks) 
o New debt service for the Plate Settlers 
o “New” - WTP Operator and Part-time Administrative Assistant, 2-Valve 

Maintenance Operators 
o Valve Maintenance Truck 
o WRF & Collection System 
o Replaced Loader with >15,000-hours & 1998 golf cart 
o Phase I of Asset Management in CityWorks for Public Utilities 
o Still cut around $5.5-million in capital requests. 
o Updating the Utility Master Plan (includes capital), Barscreen from 

1960’s, Barscreen from 1970’s, Master Pump Station Generator from 
1994, 20-year old U.V. Disinfection system, obsolete radios for telemetry, 
chemical tank replacement, lab distillation equipment, Automatic Transfer 
Switch for Neuse River generator, etc… 

• Water and Sewer Rates vs. Grant Opportunities 
• Public Utilities: Most Important Asset 

Risk and Resilience Assessment 2021 
Our most vulnerable risk is employees 

• The threats with the highest projected impacts to Goldsboro’s water system 
included several malevolent acts (human-based threats) such as key 
employees being unavailable for work, a cyberattack on the SCADA or 
billing system, and an active shooter situation, and natural hazards including 
ice storms and floods. 

• Study Approach/Overview 
• Overall CPI and Water/Sewer CPI 
• Rate History 

o Minimal usage rate adjustments over the past decade 
o Goldsboro water and sewer rates remain low compared to national and 

local utilities 
• Financial Planning Assumptions – Revenues 

– Projecting no future growth in accounts or changes in volume 
– FY 2021 Year-end rate revenue based off YTD revenue collected through 

December 2020 
– Non-rate revenues forecasted based on FY 21 budget (no inflation applied) 

• Financial Planning Assumptions – Expenditures 
– Fund balance as of 7/1/2020 (estimated) 
– FY21 budget used as starting point for modeling 

 Expenditures inflated on a line-item level by expenditure type 
(average annual 3%)  

– Significant projected capital spending: $236.5M (FY 21 – FY 31)  
 Includes a 3.0% annual inflation factor for increases in 

construction costs 
• Financial Planning Targets 

– Sufficient Reserve Levels 
 Gradual increase of operating reserve target from 2 to 6 months by 

FY 31 



3 
 
 

–  Structural Balance of Revenues to Expenditures  
–  Ratio of net income to debt payments 

 Minimum = 1.00 times annual payment requirements 
 Goal = 1.25 times annual payment requirements 

• Moving Forward 
o As you are well aware, the City has not raised rates for a number of years 

(until last year).  This effectively resulted in revenues falling behind basic 
operational needs of the systems (i.e. ten-years of 3% inflation in costs 
results in falling behind 30% or more).   

o As a result, the increase last year and the 20% recommended for next year 
effectively get rates up to where they should be to fund the basic needs of 
the systems (they also bring the City’s rates more in line with those in the 
area and NC).   

o After these needs are addressed, the City needs to start addressing $200+ 
million of capital identified over the next ten years, thus the reason for the 
ongoing 7.5% increases year over year. 

• Financial Plan – No Rate Adjustments 
• Financial Plan – Just in Time Rate Adjustments 
• Recommended Financial Plan 
• $210 – million in Capital 
• Update Utility Master Plan 

• Addressing Capital Professionally 
• Prepares for future 

• Move Big Cherry/Little Cherry Pump Stations 
• Relocates out of flood plain 
• Relocates forcemain under river 

• Address several pieces of equipment over 20-years old 
• U.V. System 
• 117, New Hope & Cherry Barscreens 
• Generators 
• ETC….  

• Important Considerations 
o Even with recommended rate adjustments cash balances will be drawn 

down to only 2 months of O&M by FY22. 
o Adopted rate increase below the recommended level in first year (effective 

7/1/2021) will result in future year adjustments higher than recommended 
(all else equal). 

o 1% Increase is estimated to generate $162,000 
• Regional Monthly Residential Bill Comparison @ 5,000 gallons 
• Findings and Recommendations 

o Current water and sewer rates are not sufficient to meet the needs of the 
utility systems 

o A 20% rate increase is recommended for FY 2022 to address the near-term 
shortfalls 

o Additional rate increases will likely be required in subsequent years to 
address the long-term needs of the utility system 

o Will you consider a multi year rate increase vs year to year? 
o Example: FY 21-22 20%, FY 22-23 7.5%, FY- 23-24 7.5%  
o The recommended adjustments to water and sewer rates will result in 

utility bills that are still below the average utility bills in surrounding 
communities in North Carolina  

 
Council took at a break at 10:41 a.m. and resumed at 10:50 a.m. 
 
Public Works Equipment & Vehicle CIP Update.  Mr. Rick Fletcher provided the 
following information: 
 

• General Overview 
o Illustrate Ongoing Concerns with the Age and Reliability of Equipment 

 Impacts our level and quality of service we provide to our 
customers 



4 
 
 

 Effects moral and employee retention  
 Increased maintenance costs 

• Only Considered PW Heavy Equipment (113) & Vehicles (33) 
o Included Equipment for all funding sources - GF, SW & UF 

• Average Age of Equipment 
o Industry Standard for Useful Life of Most Equipment is 10 Years  
o Public Works Department Overall - 146 Total  

 Average age department wide – 11.7 years  
 Percentage over 15 years old – 38.5%  (56) 
 Percentage over 10 years old – 55% (80) 

o Equipment Purchased through the General Fund – 106 Total 
 Average age – 13.3 years 
 Percentage over 15 years old – 49% 
 Percentage over 10 years old – 66% 

• Solid Waste Division 
o Have the Most and Overall Oldest Equipment – 47 Total 

 Average age  - 15.5 years 
 Percentage over 20 years old – 40%  (19) 
 Percentage over 15 years old – 51%  (24) 
 Percentage over 10 years old – 68% (32) 

o Most Heavily Used 
 Rigid Schedule – must run routes every day! 
 14,000 customers – serviced multiple times daily 

• Solid Waste CIP – First 5-Years 
• Solid Waste CIP – Second 5-Years 
• Public Works 10-Year CIP Projections 
• Considerations 

o Do Nothing – Status Quo 
o Reduce level of Service – Leaf & Limb, White goods, etc. 
o Reduce Costs/Overhead – invest savings into equipment  
o Increase Rates – Currently $22/Mth  
o Every $1 equates to ~ $160K  
o Set up a Capital Reserve for Equipment Replacement 

 
Engineering Projects Update.  Mr. Marty Anderson reviewed the following 
information: 

• Recent Organizational Changes 
  Engineering Department Hires within the last 6 months: 

  Bobby Croom, PE – Assistant City Engineer 
  Matthew Lassiter, PE – Civil Engineer 

  Reclassification of 2 positions: 
  One Construction Inspector position upgraded to a Project Manager and 

currently in the hiring process 
  Engineering Technician position will be reclassified to a City Surveyor 

upon execution of retirement 
  Organizational Restructuring: 

  Assistant City Engineer position assumed a portion of the City Engineer’s 
supervisory responsibility. 

  The Signs and Markings Shop (one employee) was relocated from Public 
Works to Engineering.  Additional Sign Technician to be requested in 
budget. 

• Recently Completed Projects 
o Wastewater Collection System Rehabilitation Project 

 FEMA funded project - $1.3 Million 
o Holly Street Elevated Water Storage Tank Repainting 

 Project cost $1.1 Million 
• Current Projects 

o Phase IV Sewer Collection Rehabilitation Project 
 Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF) – $9 Million – 95% 

Complete 
o Wastewater System Improvements 

 CWSRF Funded - $503,000 – 10% Complete 
o Water System Improvements 



5 
 
 

 CWSRF Funded - $3.6 Million – In Design and expected Bid Date 
is April 2021 

o Infrastructure Recovery Project – Sewer Rehab and Storm Drainage 
Improvements 
 Golden Leaf Foundation - $900,000 – 95% Complete 

o Street Improvements – Dirt Road Paving 
 Street Bonds - $642,000 – 60% Complete 

o Street Resurfacing 
 Street Bonds - $1.5 Million – To be advertised 

o SJAFB Sewer Outfall Improvements 
 Initial site setup and base access gained - $371,000 

o Ash Street and Alabama Street Sidewalk Project 
 Joint effort between NCDOT, COG Planning, and COG 

Engineering – In Design – COG Sidewalk Fee-In-Lieu funds and 
Housing Authority participation 

o Stoney Creek Greenway 
 NCDOT Locally administered project with State and Federal funds 

of $187,500 – Currently in Design Review 
• Upcoming Major Projects 

o Realignment of Central Heights Road at Berkeley Boulevard 
 NCDOT project U-5724 – Engineering to participate due to utility 

involvement – Construction projected to begin near the end of 
2021 

o Wayne Memorial Drive Widening 
 NCDOT project U-4753 – Engineering to participate due to utility 

involvement – Construction projected to begin 2025 
o Berkeley Boulevard Widening 

 NCDOT project U-3609 – Engineering to participate due to utility 
involvement – Construction projected to begin 2023 

o East Ash Street Widening 
 NCDOT project U-4407 – Engineering to participate due to utility 

involvement – Construction has been pushed to the ‘Unfunded’ 
category. 

 
Council took a lunch break at 11:35 a.m. 
 
Council returned from lunch at 12:45 p.m. 
 
Code Enforcement Update.  Ms. Jennifer Collins reviewed the following information: 

• Public Nuisances 96.01 – Existence of Certain Conditions to constitute public 
nuisance 

o Any condition which may be declared in this chapter to be noxious, 
detrimental or prejudicial to public health or public safety or to otherwise 
constitute a public nuisance. The following 3 items are covered by Code 
Enforcement: 
 Overgrown Lots 
 Unsightly Lots 
 Junked and/or Abandoned Vehicles  

• Overgrown Lots 
o Any uncontrolled growth of noxious weeds, grasses to a height in excess 

of ten (10) inches and/or the uncontrolled growth of bushes causing or 
threatening to cause infestation by rats, mice, snakes or vermin of any kind 
or constituting a fire hazard or which in any other way is detrimental to the 
public health, morals, safety or general welfare; provided, however, that 
this subsection shall not apply to planted and cultivated flowers, 
shrubbery, vegetables or crops, properties not reasonably accessible to 
power mowing equipment, and undeveloped parcels greater than five acres 
in size.  
 A violation of this provision shall subject the offender to a civil 

penalty in the amount of Fifty ($50.00) Dollars for the first 
offense, plus the cost of abating the nuisance. No penalty for the 



6 
 
 

first offense shall be imposed if the offender abates the nuisance 
within ten (10) days of notice of violation.  

 A second or subsequent violation of this provision shall subject the 
offender to a civil penalty in the amount up to Two Hundred and 
Fifty ($250.00) Dollars plus cost of abatement. 

 Repeated Violations within a 24 month period will not be notified 
of the violation but will be fined immediately 

• Unsightly Lots 
o Any litter consisting of man-made and used materials which is scattered, 

cast, thrown, blown, placed, swept, or deposited anywhere on a persistent, 
continuous or ongoing basis so as to accumulate on any property in open 
places such that is dangerous or prejudicial to the public health or 
otherwise constitutes a public nuisance. 
 A violation of this provision shall subject the offender to a civil 

penalty in the amount of Fifty ($50.00) Dollars for the first 
offense, plus the cost of abating the nuisance. No penalty for the 
first offense shall be imposed if the offender abates the nuisance 
within ten (10) days of notice of violation.  

 A second or subsequent violation of this provision shall subject the 
offender to a civil penalty in the amount up to Two Hundred and 
Fifty ($250.00) Dollars plus cost of abatement. 

 Repeated Violations within a 24 month period will not be notified 
of the violation but will be fined immediately 

• Junked and/or Abandoned Vehicles 
o ABANDONED VEHICLE.  A motor vehicle shall be deemed to have 

been abandoned in the following circumstances: 
(1)   It is left unattended upon a street or highway for longer than 12 hours 
in violation of a law or ordinance prohibiting parking; 
(2)  It is left unaccompanied on property owned or operated by the city for 
a period longer than 24 hours; 
(3)   It is left unaccompanied on any public street or highway for a period 
longer than seven days; or 
(4)   It is left on private property without the consent of the owner, 
occupant or lessee thereof for longer than two hours. 

o JUNKED MOTOR VEHICLE.  A vehicle that does not display a current 
license plate and: 
(1)   Is partially dismantled or wrecked; 
(2)   Cannot be self-propelled or moved in the manner in which it 
originally was intended to move; or 
(3)   Is more than five years old and appears to be worth less than $100 as 
determined by the Director of Planning or his designee. 
(4)   Except that one vehicle which is located in the rear yard on private 
property and is fully covered by a manufactured car cover and is not 
surrounded by overgrown weeds or grass shall not be considered a junked 
motor vehicle. 

o Within ten (10) days of this notice, this violation is to be corrected by one 
of the following methods: 

• Enclosure of the vehicle(s) within a fully enclosed structure; or 
• One (1) vehicle placed in the rear yard on private property and is 

fully covered by a manufactured car cover and is not surrounded 
by overgrown weeds or grass shall not be considered a junked 
motor vehicle 

• Vehicle removed from the property 
• Appeal filed with the Zoning Administrator 

o Failure to correct this violation by one of the previous methods within ten 
(10) days of notification will result in the vehicle being removed by the 
City and taken to a storage facility.  

o Charges for towing and storage are required to be repaid prior to the 
vehicle being reclaimed.  

o If the vehicle remains unclaimed for thirty (30) days after it has been 
towed, it will be sold at public auction as allowed under State Law. 

o Recommendations:  



7 
 
 

 Amend Code of Ordinances to include “and/or” to cite more junk 
vehicles (City wide). 

 2) Raise worth of vehicles from $100 to $500 
  - Currently under JUNKED MOTOR VEHICLE it states 

the following: 
 JUNKED MOTOR VEHICLE.  A vehicle that does not display a 

current license plate and: 
 (1)   Is partially dismantled or wrecked; 
 (2)   Cannot be self-propelled or moved in the manner in which it 

originally was intended to move; or 
 (3)   Is more than five years old and appears to be worth less than 

$100 as determined by the Director of Planning or his designee. 
 (4)   Except that one vehicle which is located in the rear yard on 

private property and is fully covered by a manufactured car cover 
and is not surrounded by overgrown weeds or grass shall not be 
considered a junked motor vehicle. 

o Recommendations Downtown: 
 Parking Signage and/or Parking Pavement Markings 

• No signs/markings to indicate what type of parking is 
allowed. This vehicle has been cited numerous times for 
long term parking 

• Curb is marked no parking (Yellow) but no signage to tell 
people what yellow means. Cars/motorcycles park in this 
area repeatedly. 

• Order to Repair 
o City of Goldsboro Unified Development Ordinance Chapter 5.11 

 The exterior features of any building or structure located within the 
corporate limits of the City of Goldsboro shall be preserved by the 
owner and/or parties in interest against decay, deterioration and 
structural defects. The owner and/or parties in interest shall upon 
written request of the City repair such exterior features if they are 
found to be deteriorating, or if their condition is contributing to 
deterioration, including but not limited to, any of the following 
defects: 

 Deterioration of exterior walls, foundations, flooring, parapet 
walls, roofs, beams, chimneys and either horizontal or vertical load 
bearing supports that causes leaning, sagging, splitting, listing or 
buckling; 

 Ineffective waterproofing of exterior walls, roofs and foundations, 
including broken windows/doors, failed paint, leaking roofing, 
decayed brickwork or failed siding materials; 

 Rotting, holes and other forms of decay; 
 Damages caused by fire or other calamity; 
 Deterioration of exterior stairs, porches, handrails, window/door 

frames, cornices, entablatures, wall facings or other architectural 
details that causes delaminating, instability, loss of shape or 
crumbling; 

 Boarded up windows unless otherwise approved by the Chief 
Building Inspector or the Hardship Review Committee 

 Correction or repairs will be required under the following 
procedures: 

 Whenever a petition is filed with the Planning Director or Chief 
Building Inspector that a building or structure is undergoing Order 
to Repair, the Director, Inspector, or a designated agent shall, if his 
or her preliminary investigation discovers a basis for such charges, 
within fifteen days issue and cause to be served upon the owner 
and/or such other person who may have legal possession, custody, 
and control thereof, as the same by be determined by reasonable 
diligence a complaint stating: 

 The charges in that respect and containing a notice that a hearing 
will be held before the Planning Director or Chief Building 



8 
 
 

Inspector in City Hall, not less than ten nor more than thirty days 
after the serving of such complaint; 

 That the owner and/or parties of interest shall be given a right to 
answer and give testimony; 

 That the Hardship Review Committee, as defined in this 
Ordinance, shall also be given notice of the hearing; and 

 That the rules of evidence prevailing in courts of law or equity 
shall not be controlling in hearing before the Director or Inspector. 

 Correction or repairs will be required under the following 
procedures: 

 Whenever a petition is filed with the Planning Director or Chief 
Building Inspector that a building or structure is undergoing Order 
to Repair, the Director, Inspector, or a designated agent shall, if his 
or her preliminary investigation discovers a basis for such charges, 
within fifteen days issue and cause to be served upon the owner 
and/or such other person who may have legal possession, custody, 
and control thereof, as the same by be determined by reasonable 
diligence a complaint stating: 

 The charges in that respect and containing a notice that a hearing 
will be held before the Planning Director or Chief Building 
Inspector in City Hall, not less than ten nor more than thirty days 
after the serving of such complaint; 

 That the owner and/or parties of interest shall be given a right to 
answer and give testimony; 

 That the Hardship Review Committee, as defined in this 
Ordinance, shall also be given notice of the hearing; and 

 That the rules of evidence prevailing in courts of law or equity 
shall not be controlling in hearing before the Director or Inspector. 

 Penalties and Remedies 
o Equitable Remedy 
o Order to Abatement – Court order 
o Civil Penalty - $100 per day of continuing violation 
o If penalties, fines and/or fees total $3000.00 other legal 

remedies available to the City of Goldsboro may be 
implemented/pursued. 

• Code Enforcement – Statistics (2020) 
o Code Violations (Unsightly Lots/Overgrown Lot) = 893  
o Junk Vehicles = 41 
o Order to Repair = 290 

 
Council asked staff to bring back recommended changes for consideration.  Council also 
requested staff develop a public relations campaign and action plan for litter pickup.   
 
Employees’ First Amendment Rights.  Mr. Chris McLaughlin with the UNC School of 
Government reviewed the following information: 

• Traditional View: No 1st Amendment Protection for Public Employees 
• Current View: Government Employees Do Not (Entirely) Waive Their FA Rights 
• Connick & Garcetti 
• The Big Three Questions 
• The Balancing Test 
• Matters of Public Concern 
• What is not a “public concern?” 
• Made as a part of job duties? 
• Speaking as a citizen or a public employee? 
• What speech is considered part of an employee’s job duties? 
• Adverse Employment Action 
• Recent Federal Case Highlights Different Protections for “Work” Speech and 

Social Media Speech 
 
Unified Development Ordinance Update.  The following information was reviewed: 

• Project Team – Stewart 



9 
 
 

• NCGS Chapter 160D 
o State legislature has updated the statewide zoning enabling legislation  
o This is a mandatory update for all counties, towns, and cities 
o Chapter 160D consolidates and clarifies local land use regulation 
o State deadline for compliance is 07/01/2021 

• Project Schedule 
o Chapter 160D Council Update: Feb. 24 
o First Draft (internal): est. March/April 
o Final Draft (public review): est. April 
o Planning Board Review: April 26 
o Council Review/Adoption: May 3 or 17 

• What is Chapter 10D? 
o Consolidates county and municipal regulations 
o Uniform terminology and procedures across jurisdictions 
o Clarifies all development review into one of three distinct decision types 
o Restrictions on imposing unlawful conditions 

• Decision Types for Development Review 
o Administrative – An objective decision in the regulation or enforcement of 

development regulations. Includes most permits and administrative 
decisions. 

o Legislative – A general policy decision to adopt, amend, or repeal a law or 
ordinance. Includes rezonings and ordinance amendments. 

o Quasi-judicial – A subjective, discretionary decision based on evidence 
presented regarding a specific application of a development regulation. 
Includes legal-style hearings where decisions are based on expert 
testimony. 

• Decision Types 

 
• Subdivision is a “By-Right” Process 

o Emphasis in 160D is putting more weight on rezonings and ordinance 
amendments as the point of action/decision by Council 

o Zoning district determines subdivision standards – this is established at the 
legislative rezoning 

o 160D specifies: may not condition anything not otherwise legally enabled 
by the ordinances 

• Site Plan Review 
o Administrative standards for by-right development  increased 

predictability, etc. 
o 160D specifies: may not condition anything not otherwise legally enabled 

by the ordinances 
• Conditional Rezoning in G.S. 160D 

o Conditional Use District Rezoning (legislative/quasi-judicial zoning) is no 
longer allowed 

o Conditional Rezoning (CZ) is now exclusively a legislative process 
o Functions like a combined rezoning and ordinance amendment 
o Conditional Rezoning creates unique zoning standards for a specific tract 

of land 
o Regulates uses 
o Establishes dimensional and design standards 
o Recommendation: Tie CZ to underlying zoning district with conceptual 

master plan. 
• Conditional Use Permits in G.S. 160D 



10 
 
 

o CUPs (currently Council) no longer allowed 
o Special Use Permits (SUPs) (currently BOA) still allowed as quasi-

judicial process 
o Recommendation: Old CUPs still go to Council as major SUPs; remainder 

go to BOA. 
o Recommendation: Variances for primary structure and new development 

to Council; remainder to BOA.  
• Chapter 160D Updates 

o The rules are set legislatively by Council 
o Ordinance (the UDO): permitted uses, dimensional standards, design 

standards, setbacks, landscaping, etc. 
o Rezoning: traditional, conditional 
o Requests to vary the rules are quasi-judicial  
o (within the boundaries established in the ordinance) 
o All other procedures follow the rules (administratively) 
o Subdivision, site plans, permits (except SUP), etc. 

• Review Authority After the Update 
• Council Guidance and Direction 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Ham requested staff provide specific examples related to changes at an 
upcoming work session.   
 
Council took a break at 10 minute break. 
 
Staggered Terms.  Mr. Randy Guthrie reviewed the following information: 
 

• N.C.G.S. 160A-101(4) establishes terms of office for members of council: 
Members of the council shall serve terms of office of either two or four years.  All 
of the terms need not be of the same length, and all of the terms need not to expire 
in the same year. 

• Process to Switch to Staggered Terms 
o Adopt a Resolution of Intent to consider an ordinance amending the 

charter. 
o At the same time the Resolution of Intent is adopted, the council shall also 

call a public hearing on the proposed charter amendments.  
• Public Hearing 

o The date of the hearing to be not more than 45 days after adoption of the 
resolution.   

o The notice of hearing must be published at least once, not less than 10 
days prior to the date fixed for the public hearing. 

• Ordinance Adoption 
o Following the public hearing, but no earlier than the next regular meeting 

of the Council and not later than 60 days from the public hearing, the 
Council may adopt an ordinance amending the charter to implement the 
amendments proposed in the resolution of intent. 

• Notice of Adoption 
o Ordinance to change Charter is not effective until 30 days after the 

publication of Notice of Adoption of Charter Amendments. 
o Notice must summarize the contents and effect of the Charter change. 
o Must be published within 10 days of Council vote to amend Charter. 
o Citizens may request a Special Election if a valid Referendum Petition is 

submitted. 
• Referendum 

o The people may initiate a referendum on proposed charter amendments.   
o An initiative petition shall bear the signatures and resident addresses of a 

number of qualified voters of the city equal to at least ten percent (10%) of 
the whole number of voters who are registered to vote in city elections.  

o A referendum petition must be filed with the City Clerk not later than 30 
days after publication of the notice of adoption of the ordinance. 

• Special Election – Referendum 



11 
 
 

o If a valid Referendum Petition is received, the Council shall call a special 
election on the question of adopting the Charter Amendments. 

o The special election shall be scheduled in accordance with G.S. 163-287. 
o If majority of votes are in favor of Charter Amendments, then Council 

would adopt another ordinance to make them effective. 
• Special Election Option 

o If a valid Referendum Petition is received, the Council shall call a special 
election on the question of adopting the Charter Amendments. 

o The special election shall be scheduled in accordance with G.S. 163-287. 
o If majority of votes are in favor of Charter Amendments, then Council 

would adopt another ordinance to make them effective. 
• Sample Schedule 

o If a valid Referendum Petition is received, the Council shall call a special 
election on the question of adopting the Charter Amendments. 

o The special election shall be scheduled in accordance with G.S. 163-287. 
o If majority of votes are in favor of Charter Amendments, then Council 

would adopt another ordinance to make them effective. 
 
Council discussed the process by which staggered terms would be established, i.e. 
random lot.  Pros and cons of staggered terms was also discussed.   
 
State of the Fire Department.  Deputy Fire Chief James Farfour reviewed the following 
information: 
 

• Staffing 
o Personnel related costs account for consistently over 89% of the total GFD 

budget annually. GFD personnel operate primarily out of 5 stations. The 
department provides around the clock “all hazards” response in and 
around the City of Goldsboro. The average annual response to emergency 
calls is approximately 2600. 

• Full Response 
• State of the Department 

 
 

 



12 
 
 

 
• Code Violations 

o The GFD conducted 1,480 inspections in 2020. 
o 63% of fire code violations are cleared within 90 days. 

• Fire Cause Determination 
• Training & Safety 

o GFD personnel completed 30,250 hours of training in 2020. 
o Average of 369 hours per each uniformed position. 

 
Police Department Update.  Chief West reviewed the following information: 

• Seniority List 
Years of Service      Number of Officers/Percentage 
Over 20 years                    17 – 16%    
Over 10 but less than 20 years                 32 – 29% 
Over 5 but less than 10 years                  17 – 16% 
Less than 5 years                   28 – 25% 
Vacant                     15 – 14% 
                    109 

• Crime Stats 
o Part I Crimes 
o Part I Crimes Comparison 
o Part I 5 Year Trend 
o Homicides 

• Criminal Investigations Division 
o Case Load 

 121 Cases assigned to 3 Persons Crimes Investigators  
 158 Cases assigned to 3 Property Crimes Investigators 
 114 Cases assigned to 2 Financial Crimes Investigators 
 80 Cases assigned to 1 Juvenile/Missing Person/Sex Crimes 

Investigator 
 34 DSS Cases assigned to (4) Investigators  
 A total of 439 Felony cases were assigned in 2020 (Average of 

43.9 cases per Investigator) 
 3.6% decrease from 2019 
 *The case load is consistent with other departments* 

• Training Hours  
o Officers of the Goldsboro Police Department received 7,739 hours of 

training in 2020.  This training included 24 hours of training mandated by 
the NC Criminal Justice Education and Training Standards Commission 
for each sworn officer, along with other specialized training courses to 
enhance officer’s skills and knowledge as they continue to effectively 
serve the citizens of Goldsboro: 
* Long-Term Effects of Childhood Adversity 
* Rescue Task Force, (Follow on to Rapid Deployment) 
* The Signs Within: Suicide Prevention and Awareness 
* Communication Strategies When Encountering Persons Who are Deaf or  
   Hard of Hearing 



13 
 
 

• Patrol Vehicles 
o 64 Total Vehicles 

 2008 - 3 
 2009 - 1  
 2010 - 1 
 2011 - 1 
 2013 – 9 
 2014 – 8 
 2015 - 1  
 2016 - 19 
 2018 - 10 
 2019 – 4 
 2020 – 7 

o Mileage  
 44 Vehicles have under 80,000 miles.  
 7 Vehicles have 80,001 to 100,000 miles.  
 3 Vehicles have 100,001 to 120,000 miles.  
 10 Vehicles have over 120,000 miles.  
 NOTE:  
 The service life of a take-home car is approximately 8-10 years 
 Service-life is based on 80,000 to 100,000 miles and the average 

cost to maintain the vehicle  
 The decision to deadline a car is based on model-year, mileage, 

parts availability, maintenance cost and overall safety of the car  
 Take home cars are averaging 11,000 miles per year. 

o Summary  
 6 vehicles are ten years old or older. 
 14 vehicles currently have over 100,000 miles on them and that 

number could increase to 23 by the end of 2021.  
 50% of the total yearly maintenance cost on the fleet is for vehicles 

that comprise 23% of the fleet. 
 High mileage vehicles are less reliable, use more fuel, require more 

oil between servicing and due to the poor appearance of the cars, 
reflect negatively upon the Police Department and the City of 
Goldsboro. 

• Fleet Vehicle Replacement Plan 
o 10 Patrol/2 Admin per year 
o Increase the size of the fleet to allow for additional take home cars for 

officers living outside of the city limits and to replace older cars 
o More vehicles under warranty; reduces maintenance cost 
o Enhance public image of Police Department 
o Improve officer morale and aid in retention 

• Admin Vehicles 
o 44 Total Vehicles 

 2001 - 2 
 2002 - 1  
 2005 - 1 
 2006 - 2 
 2007 - 2 
 2009 - 3 
 2010 - 6 
 2001 - 2 
 2002 - 1  
 2005 - 1 
 2006 - 2 
 2007 - 2 
 2009 - 3 
 2010 - 6 

• CALEA Certification 
o August 22, 2017 - Enrolled in CALEA  
o June 2020 - Successfully Completed Web-Based Assessment  



14 
 
 

o July 2020 - Successfully Completed Site-Based Assessment 
o November 2020 - Appeared before a panel of CALEA Commissioners for 

a formal review of our assessment and received our Advanced Law 
Enforcement Accreditation Award 

o Currently six months into our first year of a 4-year accreditation cycle 
o Completing end of year evaluations and analyses 
o Revisions and updates to General Orders 
o Collecting proofs of continued compliance 
o Updating Strategic Plan and Recruitment Plan for FY 2021-2022 

 
There being no further business, the meeting recessed at 3:46 p.m. until 9:00 a.m. 
tomorrow. 
 
FEBRUARY 25, 2021 
 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, for their 
Annual Retreat beginning February 25, 2021 at 9:00 a.m. . in the Large Conference 
Room, City Hall Addition, 200 North Center Street, Goldsboro, North Carolina with 
attendance as follows: 
 
Present: Mayor Chuck Allen, Presiding 
  Mayor Pro Tem David Ham  
  Councilmember Hiawatha Jones 

Councilmember Bill Broadaway  
Councilmember Taj Polack 
Councilmember Brandi Matthews 
Councilmember David Ham 
Councilmember Gene Aycock 

  Tim Salmon, City Manager 
Melissa Capps, City Clerk 

   
Call to Order.  The meeting was called to order by Mayor Allen at 9:00 a.m. 
 
Granicus Agenda Software.  Ms. Laura Getz and Ms. Melissa Capps provided Council 
with an overview of the new Granicus agenda management software. Granicus is an 
agenda management software.  It will streamline the meeting process, by saving time and 
paper by automating agenda approval and meeting minutes. 
 
Clerks and council members can access meeting materials on any device to view, and 
also offer citizens and interested parties digital access to meeting agendas, live 
webcasting, video recording, and minutes in a central, searchable portal. 
 
ILegislate which is a component of the Granicus software, enables Council and staff to 
review meeting agendas and supporting documents, bookmark items for easy retrieval 
and make notes on agendas.  During the meetings, it will also serve as a way for council 
to vote on the items, and votes will be displayed for the public to see.   
 
We thank you for supporting us with this Agenda Management Software.   
 
Wayne County Development Alliance – Economic Development.  The following 
information was reviewed: 

• Impact Wayne Campaign Background 
o Feasibility study October 2020 
o Interviewed 34 
o Great support for the work of the WCDA and the new 5-year plan 
o 3rd Impact Wayne Campaign with Convergent 

• Five Year Accomplishment 2015-2020 
o Announced 543 new jobs 
o Announced $110,096,000 in new capital investment 
o Completed a 50,000 SF shell building on Lot 8 in the ParkEast Industrial 

Park 



15 
 
 

o Advanced progress/sent  bids for new Goldsboro Business Campus (first 
incubator building} 

o Assisted Mount Olive to pursue and receive critical funds for improving 
water/sewer through State agencies and legislators Assisted Case Farms 
with their VRT freezer and wastewater treatment facility expansion 

o Successfully  recruited Michael Aram, Inc. from the NE US to the former  
EXCELL facility Assisted Electropin with relocation to the Rosewood 
area from the NE United States Successfully  located Stromberg Foods in 
the former Sunburst site and facility 

o Assisted Atlantic Casualty Insurance Company with Park East expansion 
and announcement 

o Responded to 68 RFls from North Carolinas Southeast (NCSE} or 
Economic Development  Partnership of North Carolina (EDPNC} since 
August 2018 

o Assisted ALTA Foods with their facility upfit and expansion 
o Assisted Tactical Scorpion Gear relocation into the former Sportsman 

World facility 
o Partnered with Lenoir & Craven Counties to develop/market the Hwy. 70 

Aerospace Corridor 
o Joined the Southeast Region for Wayne County regional promotion, 

marketing, and leads 
• ROI City of Goldsboro 

o Michael Aram, 116 new jobs, $5.7 million capital investment. Has 
expanded into an additional building and purchased a building in 
downtown Goldsboro. 

o Atlantic Casualty expansion in Park East, 83 jobs and more than $11.8 
million capita l investment. 

o Maxwell Center Impact Wayne raised $1.3 million in 2015 for the Center. 
It attracted 800 events in its first 18 months. The new Convention Center 
Hotel will expand its potential as a significant destination venue. 

o 27 active buildings and/or sites listed on WCDA website are in city limits 
including: 
 Park East 
 Goldsboro Business Campus 
 Graves Drive 
 Gold Triangle 

o Economic development staff working on behalf of the City through: 
o Marketing available buildings/sites to prospective industry 
o Working with prospects 
o Fundraising and grant writing support 

• Impact Wayne Plan 
o Initiative I – Product Development 
o Initiative II – Business Development & Marketing 
o Initiative III – Business Retention & Expansion 
o Initiative IV – Investor Relations & Development  

• Impact Wayne Projected Outcomes 
o Create 700 new jobs by 2025 
o Attract $150 million in capita l investment by 2025 

• Projected Return on Investment 
o By the end of 2025 

 700 new jobs 
 370 secondary jobs 
 $22.6 million in annual consumer expenditures 
 $45.9 million in deposit potential for area financial institutions 

• Five Year Budget 
• Leadership 

o Campaign Chair - David Perry, Goldsboro Builders Supply 
o PLATINUM DIVISION CO-CHAIRS 

 Neal Benton, Truist Bank 
 Bobby Frye, Mt. Olive Pickle 

o HONORARY CABINET 



16 
 
 

 Chuck Allen, City of Goldsboro  
 Joe Daughtery, Wayne County Commissioner 
 Kenny Talton, Town of Mount Olive 
 Dr. Thomas Walker, Wayne Community College 
 Jack Best, Best & Sons 
 Bill Bryan, Mt. Olive Pickle  
 Sam Hunter, TA Loving 
 Grey Morgan, Southern Bank 

 
Council discussed.  Councilmember Polack asked how many of the jobs went to Wayne 
County residents.  Mr. Kornegay stated they would get that information. 
 
NC Department of Commerce – Rural Economic Development.  The following 
information was reviewed: 

• Mission 
o Engage 
o Enhance 
o Transform 

• Programs 
o Community Development Block Grants 
o State Rural Grants 
o Appalachian Regional Commission  
o The Utility Account 
o Main Street & Rural Planning Center 

• Strategic Priorities 
o Build a strong ecosystem for prosperity 
o Foster job growth and capital investment 
o Enhance local capacity 
o Prioritize engagement and collaboration 

• Rural Projects 
o $119.4 million in grants awarded. 
o 183 grant projects. 
o 83 strategic plans, 58 market studies. 
o More than 300 communities served. 

• Rural NC 
o Vibrant Downtowns 
o Connected Government and Business Community 
o Resilient 
o Connected Communities 
o Strengthened & Revitalized Neighborhoods 
o Strong Infrastructure 
o Focused Forward 
o Engaged and Inclusive   

 
Mayor Allen requested information on grants received in Goldsboro. 
 
Six Month Financial Update.  Ms. Catherine Gwynn reviewed the following 
information: 

• Revenue Collections FY21 Operating Funds 
o General Fund Collections 
o Utility Fund Collections 
o Stormwater Fund Collections 
o Downtown District Collections 
o Occupancy Tax Collections 
o Actual Collections 

• Expenditures FY21 Operating Funds 
• Operating Funds – Revenue & Expenditure Summary 
• Project Funds 

o Capital Project Funds 
o Special Revenue Funds 

• Fund Balance Appropriations 



17 
 
 

Mayor Allen requested the list of purchase order rollovers.   
 
Retreat Decisions.  Mr. Tim Salmon reviewed the following: 
 
• Councilmember Polack asked staff to look at a metric for diversity in promotions.  

Councilmember Polack clarified that he would like statistics of diversity of 
promotions.  Councilmember Jones would like to look at other ways to recruit a 
diverse population.  Mr. Salmon stated he would ask the HR Director to talk about 
those.   

• Code Enforcement – staff to bring back recommended changes for council’s 
consideration. 

• Trash Pickup and Keeping Goldsboro Clean – staff will develop a public relations 
campaign and action plan working with the county and non-profits. 

• Council requested staff provide specific examples of the UDO changes at an 
upcoming work session. 

• Wayne County Development Alliance – how many jobs went to Wayne County 
residents.  

• NC Department of Commerce – Rural Economic Development – requested 
information on local grants in Goldsboro. 

• Budget Update – Focus on CD money 
• Mayor Pro Tem Ham requested staff bring back staggered terms in March for 

further discussion. 
 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 12:48 p.m.  
 
           

___________________________ 
       Chuck Allen 
       Mayor 
   
       ___________________________ 
       Melissa Capps, MMC /NCCMC 
       City Clerk  



Item B 



Item C



D





E



Agreement 
City of Goldsboro 

Goldsboro Parks and Recreation 
And 

Goldsboro Football Club Youth Academy 

This agreement is made and entered into this ____ day of __________ 2021, by and between 
THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO NORTH CAROLINA (the ‘City’), and The Goldsboro Football Club 
Youth Academy, a North Carolina non-profit organization (the “Academy”). 

WITNESSETH 
WHEREAS, the City is the owner of certain athletic fields which the Academy wishes to utilize 

from time to time with the prior written permission from the City and the City wishes to accommodate 
the Academy's use of the parks on the terms and conditions set forth herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and agreements hereinafter contained, 
it is mutually agreed by and between the parties hereto as follows: 

1. Use of Parks by the Academy. The City agrees to permit the Academy to utilize certain
parks designated by the City at those times that are mutually acceptable to each of the parties
for a term commencing January 1, 2021 and ending December 31, 2026. The parties agree
that the Academy’s use of the parks designated by the City shall be nonexclusive. The
Academy's use of the parks designated by the City shall be subject to the City's ordinances,
policies and direction of the City's officers and as otherwise hereinafter provided. Block
Schedules must be submitted to the City for use of the fields, inclusive of rain dates, seasons
beginning/end by June 1of the preceding year. Preliminary game and practice schedules are
due 30 days prior to the season's beginning.  Schedules will be approved by the City based on
availability.

2. The Academy agrees to adhere to all City ordinances, use policies and procedures while in
the parks and fields. The Academy shall not assign this lease nor shall it sublease or rent out
any property of the City without prior written consent of the City.

3. Fees. A fee equal to the amount of $1 per player per game or practice, based on team's
roster, that use City owned fields and facilities shall be paid by Academy to the City
according to the following payment  schedule: 60% by March  1, 2021, 10% by April 1,
2021, 10% by May 1, 2021, 10% by June 1, 2021, and 10% by July 1, 2021. Academy
registration records for each season shall be used to determine the total fee to be paid to the
City, with said records being open for City review upon request. The Academy shall
furnish to the City office a listing of all registered participants and coaches by domicile zip
code. Roster sizes from non Academy opponents will be accepted on the 'honor system'.

Tournaments may be included in the structure.

In lieu of payment, the City would like to exchange volunteer hours at sports events.  We
anticipate hosting a growing number of events annually and will exchange volunteer hours at a
value of $15/hour for field usage.



The City Parks and Recreation Department agrees to inform the Academy by January 1 
annually of the scheduled tournaments and anticipated volunteer demand. For events added 
after the schedule has been released, the City Parks and Recreation Department agrees to inform 
the Academy at least ten (10) calendar days prior to those events. In the case of field use 
overage or excess volunteer hours, the City will roll forward 1 year any uncollected 
fee/volunteer time. No balance will be carried forward more than one year. The City will 
provide a biannual report (June 1 and January 1) reporting balance of volunteer hours and field 
usage. 

4. Maintenance Standards. In agreeing to use the City parks, the Academy agrees to
participate in completing the routine maintenance items while using the parks.

• Inspect the fields prior to use daily
• Litter control through daily collection when scheduled use by the Academy
• Immediately reporting of any damages and/or maintenance concerns to the City

FURTHERMORE, The City agrees to prepare and line the fields/parks prior and throughout 
the season to maintain quality conditions for use. 

The City shall maintain the right to add, delete or modify maintenance procedures as deemed 
necessary.  Every effort will be made to flex maintenance around scheduled games and practices. 

The responsibility of the common areas and turf will be the responsibility of the City. 

5. Insurance
The A c a d e m y  shall maintain commercial general liability (CGL) and commercial umbrella
liability insurance with a limit of not less than $2,000,000 for each occurrence. If such insurance
policy contains a general aggregate limit, it shall apply separately to this Agreement.

A1. Occurrence basis coverage. This CGL and umbrella insurance shall be written on an
occurrence basis and shall cover liability arising from premises, operation, independent 
contractors, products-completed operations, bodily and personal injury, property damage, 
as well as liability assumed by the Academy under this Agreement. 

11. Additional insured. The City shall be named as an insured under the CGL and umbrella
insurance using an additional endorsement to the City for claims arising out of or as result
of this Agreement.

111. Waiver of subrogation. The Academy waives all rights against the City for recovery of 
damages to the extent these damages are covered by the CGL or commercial umbrella 
liability insurance maintained pursuant to this Agreement. 

B. Delivery to City of certificates. Within 10 days from the start date of this Agreement, the 
Academy shall furnish the City with copies of its current certificates of insurance documenting 
each such policy along with the additional insured endorsements required in this section. 



C. Cancellation. All such insurance provided for herein shall be non-cancelable, except 
upon 30 days' prior written notice to the City, and shall contain the following endorsement (or its 
equivalent) and shall appear on the policies respective insurance  certificates: 

It is hereby understood and agreed that this insurance policy may not be canceled 
by the surety or the intention not to renew be signed by the surety until 30 days 
after receipt by the City of Goldsboro by registered mail of written notice of such 
intention to cancel or not to renew. 

D. No Limitation on liability. The minimum amounts set forth in this Agreement for such 
insurance shall not be construed as a limitation or satisfaction of the Academy’s liability, 
including indemnification, to the City under the Agreement as to the amount of such insurance. 

E. No Waiver. The failure or delay of the City at any time to require performance by the 
Academy of any provision of this section, even if known, shall not affect the right of the City to 
require performance of that provision or to exercise any right, power or remedy under this 
Agreement, and any waiver by the City of any breach of any provision in this section shall not be 
construed as a waiver of any continuing or succeeding breach of such provision, a waiver of the 
provision itself, or a waiver of any right, power or remedy under this Agreement. 

F. Primary coverage. The coverage shall apply as primary coverage with respect to any 
other insurance or self-insurance program afforded to the City. There shall be no endorsement or 
modification of this coverage to make it excess over other available insuranceIcoverage; 
alternatively, if the CGL and umbrella, excess of reinsurance states that it is pro rata, it shall be 
endorsed to be primary with respect to the City. 

6. Liability, Indemnification and Waiver
A. Assumption of liability. Except as specifically provided by law or this Agreement, the
City assumes no liability or responsibility for any injury to or death of any person or persons
including officers and employees of the Academy and participants in the Academy's program and
activities or any other person and assumes no liability or responsibility for any damage to property
sustained by any person(s). In addition, the Academy will report all injuries on City property to
the City within 24 hours.

B. Indemnification. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Academy will defend,
indemnify and hold the City harmless from all claims arising directly or indirectly from or in
connection with (i) the conduct or management of the programs and activities of the Academy;
(ii) any act, omission or negligence of the Academy or any of its directors, officers, agents,
employees, invitees or contractors of the Academy; (iii) any accidents, injury or damage
whatsoever occurring on or at the parks arising from, directly or indirectly, the use of the parks
by the Academy or any of its directors, officers, agents, employees, invitees or contractors, as well
as participants in the Academy's programs and activities except to the extent of any negligent or
wrongful act or omission of the City. However, this limitation shall not in any way limit the
Academy's duty to defend the City.

C. Defense of City. In the event any claims shall arise, the Academy shall defend and pay any
judgment or settlement against the City in such claims. The City shall tender the defense to the
Academy. The Academy and the City shall mutually agree to counsel to defend of such claims.
The City, in its sole discretion, may participate in the defense of such claims at the



Academy's sole expense, but such participation shall not relieve the Academy from its duty to 
defend and to pay any judgment or settlement against the City in such claims. Except where a 
settlement completely and forever releases the City from any and all liabilities without financial 
contribution by the City or its insurer, the Academy shall not agree to any settlement of the 
claims without the City's approval. 

D. Waiver of defenses. In any and all claims against the City or any of its agents or 
employees the indemnification obligation under this paragraph shall not be limited by any 
limitation on the amount or type of damages, compensation or benefits payable by or for the 
Academy under applicable law. The Academy waives all defenses available to the Academy 
which limits the amount of the Academy's liability to the City. 

7. No Assignment. The Academy shall not assign its interest in this Agreement without
obtaining the written consent and approval of the City.

8. Binding upon successors. This Agreement shall be binding upon the successors and assigns
of the parties hereto.  The Academy shall submit to the Parks and Recreation Department the
names, addresses, and phone numbers of all new officers and board members after election
or appointment.

9. Reimbursement for increased insurance costs. Any increase of insurance premium on the
parks resulting for such use by the Academy shall be paid for by the Academy.

10. No Alteration. The Academy shall not make structural improvements, changes or alteration to
the parks without first obtaining the written consent of the City. Any improvements to the parks
will be through a donation to the City, and therefore become the property of the City.

11. Integration of all terms into Agreement. This Agreement contains all of the terms, conditions
and agreements between the parties hereto and no amendments, additions or changes hereto
shall be valid unless attached hereto in writing and signed by the City and the Academy. Failure
to abide by the policies and rules set forth in this agreement could result in additional fees
assessed to the Academy and/or loss of privileges regarding the use of parks and fields.

12. Game and Practice Cancellations. City reserves the right to cancel at any time for inclement
weather, hazardous conditions, maintenance or higher purpose as deemed by City officials. T h e
City will notify the Academy once a decision has been made.

13. Concessions.  Sale of concessions, food, gear, scheduling of food trucks or other items sales are
not included in this agreement.

14. Exclusions. Concessions stands, picnic shelter and other non-field facilities are not included in
this agreement.

15. Agreement Cancellation.  With 90 days written notice, either party may cancel this agreement.

16. Academy Sponsorship Guidelines



Sponsorships solicited by the Academy must follow the following guidelines: 
1. The sponsorship level deemed by the Academy to display a sponsorship

banner at a City owned athletic field must not be less than $500 (cash or in-
kind services).

2. Must be approved by the Goldsboro Parks and Recreation Department.
3. Will only be allowed to be displayed during game season or permitted activity

(camp, clinic, or tournament).  Banners may be hung in the week before the first
game and removed within a week of the final game.  Any banners not removed
will be disposed of by the Park and Recreation Department.

4. Must be placed on fencing designated by the Goldsboro Parks and Recreation
Department.

5. Cannot exceed 6' in height x 24' in length.
6. Must be made out of vinyl with eyeholes.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have, the day and year first above written, signed 
and executed this Agreement by virtue of authority given and granted by the respective corporate 
authorities of the parties hereto. 

THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO 

   _______________________ 
Mayor, City of Goldsboro 

Attested by: 

       __________________________________ 
City Clerk 

Goldsboro Football Club Youth Academy 

      ___________________________________ 
President or Vice-President 



Item F 















G











1503

1106

1505
1507

1738

1802
1764

103

104

100

562546 B8
554 B3

534 C8

546 C4

540 A4
546 A1 554 A3

534 B8

546 B3

554 A6

534 A3

554 B1

906

554 B5

101

554 C7

908

540 A5

554 C8 554
B6546 C2

1603
1601

534 B4

546 C1
554 B2

100
540 B4

540 B2

1600

534 B5

540 B7

540 A3

554
B7

540
B6

105

540 A2
540 C1 546 C7540 A8

546 A8

544

546 A7
554
C2

101

1104

556
201

542

101

102

103

1107

N
BA

DE
N

CT

SUNSET 

DR

ATSUR PL

SHELLEY DR

CHRISTOPHER ALLEN

DR

SHANNON 
AV

W

NEW

HOPE

RD

CUYLER

BEST

RD

0 125 25062.5
Feet .

The data represented on this map has been compiled by the best 
methods available. Accuracy is contingent upon the source information 
as compiled by various agencies and departments both internal and
external to the City of Goldsboro, NC. Users of the data represented
on this map are hereby notified that the primary information sources
should be consulted for verification of the information contained herein. 
The City of Goldsboro and the companies contracted to develop these 
data assume no legal responsibilities for the information or accuracy 
contained on this map. It is strictly forbidden to sell or reproduce these 
maps or data for any reason without the written consent of the City of 
Goldsboro.

SITE

Z-2-21
BEST PROPERTIES, INC.
MC MORGAN & ASSOICATES, INC.
SENIOR APARTMENTS - 84 UNITS 
FROM RESIDENTIAL (R-12) TO RESIDENTIAL (R-9 CZ)
CUYLER BEST ROAD & W. NEW HOPE ROAD
3610-81-4065

CASE NO:
OWNER:
APPLICANT:
REQUEST:
LOCATION:
PIN #: 

REZONING REQUEST:

Z-1-21 SHANNON VIEW
SENIOR APARTMENTS - 84 UNITS 

REQUEST:  FROM RESIDENTIAL (R-12) TO RESIDENTIAL (R-9 CZ)



1503

1106

1505
1507

1738

1802
1764

103

104

100

562546 B8
554 B3

534 C8

546
C4

546 B7

554 A3

534 B8

546 B3

554 A6

534 A3

554 B1

906

554 B5

101

554 C7

908

540 A5

554 C8 554
B6546 C2

1603
1601

534 B4

546 C1

540 C4

554 B2

100

540
B3

546 C3

540 B2

1600

534 B5

540 B7

540 C3
540 A3

554
B7

540
B6

105

540 A2

546 B5
540 C1
540 A8

544

546
A7

554
C2

101

1104

556
201

542

101

102

103

1107

N
BA

DE
N

CT

SUNSET 

DR

ATSUR PL

SHELLEY DR

CHRISTOPHER ALLEN

DR

SHANNON 
AV

W

NEW

HOPE

RD

CUYLER

BEST

RD

MDR

MDR

MDR

MDR

MU

MU

MU

MU

0 125 25062.5
Feet .

The data represented on this map has been compiled by the best 
methods available. Accuracy is contingent upon the source information 
as compiled by various agencies and departments both internal and
external to the City of Goldsboro, NC. Users of the data represented
on this map are hereby notified that the primary information sources
should be consulted for verification of the information contained herein. 
The City of Goldsboro and the companies contracted to develop these 
data assume no legal responsibilities for the information or accuracy 
contained on this map. It is strictly forbidden to sell or reproduce these 
maps or data for any reason without the written consent of the City of 
Goldsboro.

SITE

Z-2-21
BEST PROPERTIES, INC.
MC MORGAN & ASSOICATES, INC.
SENIOR APARTMENTS - 84 UNITS 
FROM RESIDENTIAL (R-12) TO RESIDENTIAL (R-9 CZ)
CUYLER BEST ROAD & W. NEW HOPE ROAD
3610-81-4065

CASE NO:
OWNER:
APPLICANT:
REQUEST:
LOCATION:
PIN #: 

REZONING REQUEST:

Z-1-21 SHANNON VIEW
SENIOR APARTMENTS - 84 UNITS 

REQUEST:  FROM RESIDENTIAL (R-12) TO RESIDENTIAL (R-9 CZ)



1503

1106

1505 1507

1738

1802
1764

103

104

100

562546 B8
554 B3

534 C8

546 C4

540 A4
546 A1 554 A3

534 B8

546 B3

554 A6

534 A3

554 B1

906

554
B5

101
554 C7

908

540 A5

546 C2

1603
1601

534 B4

546 C1
554 B2

100
540 B4

540 B2

1600

534 B5

540
B7

540 A3

554 B7
554 C4

105

540 A2
540 C1

540 B8 546 C7
546 A8540 C7

544

546 A7

101

1104

556
201

542

101

102

103

1107

N
BA

DE
N

CT

SUNSET 

DR

ATSUR PL

SHELLEY DR

CHRISTOPHER ALLEN

DR

SHANNON 
AV

W

NEW

HOPE

RD

CUYLER

BEST

RD

R-16

NB

O&I-I

R-12

SC O&I-I

R-12

R-12SF

R-12

R-12

R-12SF

O&I-I

O&I-I

R-6
CD

R-12SF

R-12SF

0 125 25062.5
Feet .

The data represented on this map has been compiled by the best 
methods available. Accuracy is contingent upon the source information 
as compiled by various agencies and departments both internal and
external to the City of Goldsboro, NC. Users of the data represented
on this map are hereby notified that the primary information sources
should be consulted for verification of the information contained herein. 
The City of Goldsboro and the companies contracted to develop these 
data assume no legal responsibilities for the information or accuracy 
contained on this map. It is strictly forbidden to sell or reproduce these 
maps or data for any reason without the written consent of the City of 
Goldsboro.

SITE

Z-2-21
BEST PROPERTIES, INC.
MC MORGAN & ASSOICATES, INC.
SENIOR APARTMENTS - 84 UNITS 
FROM RESIDENTIAL (R-12) TO RESIDENTIAL (R-9 CZ)
CUYLER BEST ROAD & W. NEW HOPE ROAD
3610-81-4065

CASE NO:
OWNER:
APPLICANT:
REQUEST:
LOCATION:
PIN #: 

REZONING REQUEST:

Z-1-21 SHANNON VIEW
SENIOR APARTMENTS - 84 UNITS R-16 

REQUEST:  FROM RESIDENTIAL (R-12) TO RESIDENTIAL (R-9 CZ)







ORDINANCE NO. 2021 -

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE 

OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 

CODE OF ORDINANCES 

WHEREAS, after notice duly given according to law, a public hearing was held before the 

City Council and the Planning Commission at a regular meeting held in the City Council 

Chambers, 214 N. Center St. in the Historic City Hall building, on Monday, March 15, 2021, at 

7:00 p. m., for the purpose of considering and discussing the passing of an ordinance amending 

the Unified Development Ordinance of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina; and 

WHEREAS, after completion of said public hearing and receipt of the recommendation 

of the Planning Commission, the City Council of the City of Goldsboro deems it advisable and 

for the best interest of the City and those residing within its zoning jurisdiction that the Unified 

Development Ordinance be amended as herein below set forth; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North 

Carolina: 

1. That the Unified Development Ordinance of the City of Goldsboro, North 

Carolina Code of Ordinances, be and the same is hereby amended by changing: 

From Residential (R-12) to Residential (R-9 CZ) for development of an eighty

four (84) unit senior apartment complex. 

Z-1-21 Shannon View -The property is located on the west side of W. New 

Hope Road between Cuyler Best Road and N. Harding Drive 

The Wayne County Tax Identification Number is 3610-81-4065. 

2. That the Official Zoning Map, Goldsboro, North Carolina, on file in the Office of 

the Director of Planning and Community Development be promptly changed to reflect this 

amendment and the appropriate entries in reference thereto be entered in the descriptive 

record of changes as provided in Section 2 of the Unified Development Ordinance. 

3. That this Ordinance shall become effective from and after the entry of the 

changes or amendments herein made on the said Official Zoning Map. 

Adopted this ___ day of __________ _, 2021. 

Mayor 

Attested by: 

City Clerk 



CITY OF GOLDSBORO 

ORDER APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 

The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, having held a public hearing on 

March 15, 2021 to consider the following Conditional Use Permit application number: 

CU-4-21 Shannon View - The property is located on the West side of New Hope Road 

between Cuyler Best Road and N. Harding in the Residential (R-9 CZ) zoning district. 

To approve the request for a Conditional Use Permit# CU-4-21 Shannon View in the 

Residential (R-9 CZ) zoning district limiting the use to an 84-unit senior apartment complex; 

having heard all the evidence and arguments presented and reports from City Officials, and 

having received recommendation for approval from the Goldsboro Planning Commission 

pertaining to said application, makes the following findings of fact. 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

The City Council makes the CONCLUSION that the proposed use does satisfy the general 

conditions imposed on the Council in its deliberations for issuing a Conditional Use Permit 

under Sections 5.4 Table of Permitted Uses; and 5.5.4 Special and Conditional Use Specific 

Regulations regarding multi-family development. 

Based upon the foregoing FINDINGS OF FACT, the City Council makes the CONCLUSION that 

the proposed use DOES satisfy the general conditions imposed on the Council in its 

deliberations for modifications and issuing a Conditional Use Permit under Section 2.2.8 of the 

City of Goldsboro Zoning Ordinance with the following modifications for Conditional Use 

Permit #CU-4-21 Shannon View: 

1. Modification of the City's parking requirement from 2 parking spaces per apartment 

to 1 based on NCFA Parking Requirements for Senior Apartments; and 

2. Modification of interconnectivity due to the proposed site layout not being practical 

or safe for the residents of the facility; and 

3. Modification of the City's sidewalk installation and pay a fee-in-lieu of $9,864. 

In addition to the request, an Annexation petition must be submitted to the City of 

Goldsboro as the subject property is located outside the City limits. Since City utilities are 

located within 1,000 ft. of the site, the developer will be required to connect to City water and 

sewer. 

Upon motion made by Council member ______ and seconded by Councilmember 

-----� the Council approved the applicant's request for the construction of an 84-unit 

senior apartment complex limiting the use specifically to an 84-unit senior apartment complex 

located in the Residential (R-9 CZ) zoning district. 

Therefore, because the City Council concludes that all of the general conditions precedent 

to the issuance of a CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT have BEEN satisfied, 

IT IS ORDERED that the application for the issuance of a CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT be 

APPROVED. 

Thus ordered this ___ day of ________ _, 2021. 

Chuck Allen, Mayor 

Ronald T. Lawrence, City Attorney 

Page 1of1 



H









ORDINANCE NO. 2021 -

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE 

OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 

CODE OF ORDINANCES 

WHEREAS, after notice duly given according to law, a public hearing was held before the 

City Council and the Planning Commission at a regular meeting held in the City Council 

Chambers, 214 N. Center St. in the Historic City Hall building, on Monday, March 15, 2021, at 

7:00 p. m., for the purpose of considering and discussing the passing of an ordinance amending 

the Unified Development Ordinance of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina; and 

WHEREAS, after completion of said public hearing and receipt of the recommendation 

of the Planning Commission, the City Council of the City of Goldsboro deems it advisable and 

for the best interest of the City and those residing within its zoning jurisdiction that the Unified 

Development Ordinance be amended as herein below set forth; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North 

Carolina: 

1. That the Unified Development Ordinance of the City of Goldsboro, North 

Carolina Code of Ordinances, be and the same is hereby amended by changing: 

From Residential (R-16) to Residential (R-6 CZ) for development of an eighty-four 

(84) unit apartment complex. 

Z-2-21 Tiffany Garden - Phase II - The property is located on the west side of 

Thoroughfare Road between Central Heights Road and NC Railroad. 

The Wayne County Tax Identification Number is 3529-23-5463 (portion of). 

2. That the Official Zoning Map, Goldsboro, North Carolina, on file in the Office of 

the Director of Planning and Community Development be promptly changed to reflect this 

amendment and the appropriate entries in reference thereto be entered in the descriptive 

record of changes as provided in Section 2 of the Unified Development Ordinance. 

3. That this Ordinance shall become effective from and after the entry of the 

changes or amendments herein made on the said Official Zoning Map. 

Adopted this ___ day of __________ � 2021. 

Mayor 

Attested by: 

City Clerk 



CITY OF GOLDSBORO 

ORDER APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 

The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, having held a public hearing on 

March 15, 2021 to consider the following Conditional Use Permit application number: 

CU-5-21 Tiffany Garden - Phase II - The property is located on the West side of 

Thoroughfare Road between Central Heights Road and NC Railroad. 

To approve the request for a Conditional Use Permit# CU-5-21 Tiffany Garden - Phase II in 

the Residential (R-6 CZ) zoning district limiting the use to an 84-unit apartment complex; having 

heard all the evidence and arguments presented and reports from City Officials, and having 

received recommendation for approval from the Goldsboro Planning Commission pertaining to 

said application, makes the following findings of fact. 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

The City Council makes the CONCLUSION that the proposed use does satisfy the general 

conditions imposed on the Council in its deliberations for issuing a Conditional Use Permit 

under Sections 5.4 Table of Permitted Uses; and 5.5.4 Special and Conditional Use Specific 

Regulations regarding multi-family development. 

Based upon the foregoing FINDINGS OF FACT, the City Council makes the CONCLUSION that 

the proposed use DOES satisfy the general conditions imposed on the Council in its 

deliberations for modifications and issuing a Conditional Use Permit under Section 2.2.8 of the 

City of Goldsboro Zoning Ordinance with the following modifications apply to Conditional Use 

Permit #CU-5-21 Tiffany Garden - Phase II: 

1. Modification of the City's sidewalk installation and pay a fee-in-lieu of $8,280; and 

2. Allowing multi-family dwelling as a permitted use in the Residential (R-6 CZ) Conditional

zoning district; and

3. The proposed multi-family development be limited to 84-unit apartment complex.

In addition to the request, an Annexation petition must be submitted to the City of 

Goldsboro as the subject property is located outside the City limits. Since City utilities are 

located within 1,000 ft. of the site, the developer will be required to connect to City water and 

sewer. 

Upon motion made by Councilmember ______ and seconded by Council member 

_ _ _ _  _, the Council approved the applicant's request for the construction of an 84-unit 

apartment complex located in the Residential (R-6 CZ) zoning district. 

Therefore, because the City Council concludes that all of the general conditions precedent 

to the issuance of a CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT have BEEN satisfied, 

IT IS ORDERED that the application for the issuance of a CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT be 

APPROVED. 

Thus ordered this ___ day of _____ __ � 2021. 

Chuck Allen, Mayor 

Ronald T. Lawrence, City Attorney 

Page 1of1 



RANDALL LN

CENTRAL
HEIGHTS

RD

KEITH PL

HILDA 
PL

BYRON 
PL

FAITH 
PL

THOROUGHFARE 

RD

0 225 450112.5
Feet .

The data represented on this map has been compiled by the best 
methods available. Accuracy is contingent upon the source information 
as compiled by various agencies and departments both internal and
external to the City of Goldsboro, NC. Users of the data represented
on this map are hereby notified that the primary information sources
should be consulted for verification of the information contained herein. 
The City of Goldsboro and the companies contracted to develop these 
data assume no legal responsibilities for the information or accuracy 
contained on this map. It is strictly forbidden to sell or reproduce these 
maps or data for any reason without the written consent of the City of 
Goldsboro.

SITE

Z-2-21
SOUTHEAST INVESTORS GROUP, LLC.
MC MORGAN & ASSOICATES, INC.
APARTMENTS - 84 UNITS 
FROM RESIDENTIAL (R-16) TO RESIDENTIAL (R-6 CZ)
THOROUGHFARE ROAD
3529-23-5463 (portion of)

CASE NO:
OWNER:
APPLICANT:
REQUEST:
LOCATION:
PIN #: 

REZONING REQUEST:

Z-2-21 TIFFANY GARDEN - PHASE II
APARTMENTS - 84 UNITS 

REQUEST:  FROM RESIDENTIAL (R-16) TO RESIDENTIAL (R-6CZ)



RANDALL LN

CENTRAL

HEIGHTS

RD

KEITH PL

HILDA 
PL

BYRON 
PL

FAITH 
PL

THOROUGHFARE 

RD
MDR

Conservation

MDR

MDR

Industrial

Conservation

Industrial

Industrial

MDR

0 225 450112.5
Feet .

The data represented on this map has been compiled by the best 
methods available. Accuracy is contingent upon the source information 
as compiled by various agencies and departments both internal and
external to the City of Goldsboro, NC. Users of the data represented
on this map are hereby notified that the primary information sources
should be consulted for verification of the information contained herein. 
The City of Goldsboro and the companies contracted to develop these 
data assume no legal responsibilities for the information or accuracy 
contained on this map. It is strictly forbidden to sell or reproduce these 
maps or data for any reason without the written consent of the City of 
Goldsboro.

SITE

Z-2-21
SOUTHEAST INVESTORS GROUP, LLC.
MC MORGAN & ASSOICATES, INC.
APARTMENTS - 84 UNITS 
FROM RESIDENTIAL (R-16) TO RESIDENTIAL (R-6 CZ)
THOROUGHFARE ROAD
3529-23-5463 (portion of)

CASE NO:
OWNER:
APPLICANT:
REQUEST:
LOCATION:
PIN #: 

REZONING REQUEST:

Z-2-21 TIFFANY GARDEN - PHASE II
APARTMENTS - 84 UNITS 

REQUEST:  FROM RESIDENTIAL (R-16) TO RESIDENTIAL (R-6 CZ)



RANDALL LN

CENTRAL

HEIGHTS

RD

KEITH PL

HILDA 
PL

BYRON 
PL

FAITH 
PL

THOROUGHFARE 

RD

R-16
RM-NC

R-16
RM-NC

R-12
RM-NC

RM-8

RM-9

R-16
RM-NC

RM-8
RM-NC

R-16
RM-NC

R-12

R-12

R-16

O&I-I

R-12

RM-9

R-12
RM-NC

R-16

R-12
RM-NC

R-12
CD

IBP-1

NB

O&I-I

R-12

R-12

R-12

R-12

R-16

R-12

NB

R-12

R-16
RM-NC

RM-8

O&I-I

R-12

R-12

R-12
RM-NC

I-2

R-16

R-16

R-16

R-12
RM-9

R-12

R-12
RM-NC

R-9

IBP-1

RM-9

R-12
RM-NC

R-12

O&I-I
RM-NC

0 225 450112.5
Feet .

The data represented on this map has been compiled by the best 
methods available. Accuracy is contingent upon the source information 
as compiled by various agencies and departments both internal and
external to the City of Goldsboro, NC. Users of the data represented
on this map are hereby notified that the primary information sources
should be consulted for verification of the information contained herein. 
The City of Goldsboro and the companies contracted to develop these 
data assume no legal responsibilities for the information or accuracy 
contained on this map. It is strictly forbidden to sell or reproduce these 
maps or data for any reason without the written consent of the City of 
Goldsboro.

SITE

Z-2-21
SOUTHEAST INVESTORS GROUP, LLC.
MC MORGAN & ASSOICATES, INC.
APARTMENTS - 84 UNITS 
FROM RESIDENTIAL (R-16) TO RESIDENTIAL (R-6 CZ)
THOROUGHFARE ROAD
3529-23-5463 (portion of)

CASE NO:
OWNER:
APPLICANT:
REQUEST:
LOCATION:
PIN #: 

REZONING REQUEST:

Z-2-21 TIFFANY GARDEN - PHASE II
APARTMENTS - 84 UNITS 

REQUEST:  FROM RESIDENTIAL (R-16) TO RESIDENTIAL (R-6 CZ)







I 





166

131

38

184

184

200

60

85

185

30

50

172

265

189

98

20

74

74

197

197

168

168

168

50

91.40

135

135

91.40

(584)

105

188

105

188

168

222

45.98

97.06

74.03

235

235

88

88

189.81

411.19

76.82

102.5

200.51

155

85

60

60

26.9

175

200.96

105

88

32
.7

179.44

105

88

150.01

364.86

23

86.5

155

133.67

41.51

172.09

182

38

235.28

150.01

24 154.63

86.5

215.01

193.04

258.3

46.49

203.19

52.11

20
0.0

6

10
8.0

3

88

136

136

371.5

223

424.04

76.82

102.5

184.42

184.42

184.42

229.87

14
8.5

3

44
6.6

2

640.98

248.14

465.71

(301)

364.86

14

621 G

627 I

627 F

2710 D43

619 C

613 A 613 G627 H

2710 D41

615 C

619 H

2830 B

627 E

627 AG

621 B627 M

627
B

619 G

615 D

613 J

621
D

611 A

619 F

419

611 F

2710 E51

2710 C31

627
A

2710 C33

2710 F65

611 B

627 Z

613
D

2710 E52

2710
F63

627 Q

611 C

2710 C35

613 I

613 E

2710 E53

627 C627 J

627 N

627 K

502 D

508 A

627 L

607

611 E

508 B

621 E

2830 A

613 C

621 A
613
F

621 F

627 O

619 B

615 A

514

2710 G71

2710 G73

2710 F60

627 P

2832

615
B

619 A

2710 C34

2710 F64

2710 G72

2710 F62

502 C1

506 B

502 B

508 C

502 A

421

432

435 2710 E50

2710 G70

505

433

503 512

516

2710 C30

507

500 A

2901

600

2710 Z502

501 C

507 A

609

501
I501

H

505

510

501 J

508

507

501

501

500

501 E

501 B

500 B

501 A

2710 122
2710 120

2710 119

502 C2

506 A

506

506 B

CASHWELL DR

N

BERKELEY

BLVD

MALL
RD

EASTGATE 
DR

GB

SC

GB

GB

R-6

SC

GB

GB

GB

GB
SC

GB

GB

GB

0 130 26065
Feet

Z-3-21 BARNES JEWELERS BUILDING
REZONING REQUEST:  FROM SHOPPING CENTER (SC) TO GENERAL BUSINESS (GB)

.

The data represented on this map has been compiled by the best 
methods available. Accuracy is contingent upon the source information 
as compiled by various agencies and departments both internal and
external to the City of Goldsboro, NC. Users of the data represented
on this map are hereby notified that the primary information sources
should be consulted for verification of the information contained herein. 
The City of Goldsboro and the companies contracted to develop these 
data assume no legal responsibilities for the information or accuracy 
contained on this map. It is strictly forbidden to sell or reproduce these 
maps or data for any reason without the written consent of the City of 
Goldsboro.

SITE

CASE NO:
OWNER:
APPLICANT:
REQUEST:
PIN #: 
LOCATION:

REZONING REQUEST:
Z-3-21
Mohammed Ewais
Doyce & Stephen Barnes
From Shopping Center (SC) to General Business (GB)
3519-43-4371
502 Eastgate Drive



166

131

38

184

184

200

60

85

185

30

50

172

265

189

98

20

74

74

197

197

168

168

168

50

91.40

135

135

91.40

(584)

105

188

105

188

168

222

45.98

97.06

74.03

235

235

88

88

189.81

411.19

76.82

102.5

200.51

155

85

60

60

26.9

175

200.96

105

88

32
.7

179.44

105

88

150.01

364.86

23

86.5

155

133.67

41.51

172.09

182

38

235.28

150.01

24 154.63

86.5

215.01

193.04

258.3

46.49

203.19

52.11

20
0.0

6

10
8.0

3

88

136

136

371.5

223

424.04

76.82

102.5

184.42

184.42

184.42

229.87

14
8.5

3

44
6.6

2

640.98

248.14

465.71

(301)

364.86

14

621 G

627 I

627 F

2710 D43

619 C

613 A 613 G627 H

2710 D41

615 C

619 H

2830 B

627 E

627 AG

621 B627 M

627
B

619 G

615 D

613 J

621
D

611 A

619 F

419

611 F

2710 E51

2710 C31

627
A

2710 C33

2710 F65

611 B

627 Z

613
D

2710 E52

2710
F63

627 Q

611 C

2710 C35

613 I

613 E

2710 E53

627 C627 J

627 N

627 K

502 D

508 A

627 L

607

611 E

508 B

621 E

2830 A

613 C

621 A
613
F

621 F

627 O

619 B

615 A

514

2710 G71

2710 G73

2710 F60

627 P

2832

615
B

619 A

2710 C34

2710 F64

2710 G72

2710 F62

502 C1

506 B

502 B

508 C

502 A

421

432

435 2710 E50

2710 G70

505

433

503
512

516

2710 C30

507

500 A

2901

600

2710 Z502

501
C

507 A

609

501 I

501 H

505

510

501 J

508

507

501

501

500

501 E501 B

501
G

500 B

501 A

2710 122
2710 120

2710 119

502 C2

506 A

506

506 B

CASHWELL DR

N

BERKELEY

BLVD

MALL
RD

EASTGATE 
DR

0 130 26065
Feet

Z-3-21 BARNES JEWELERS BUILDING
REZONING REQUEST:  FROM SHOPPING CENTER (SC) TO GENERAL BUSINESS (GB)

.

The data represented on this map has been compiled by the best 
methods available. Accuracy is contingent upon the source information 
as compiled by various agencies and departments both internal and
external to the City of Goldsboro, NC. Users of the data represented
on this map are hereby notified that the primary information sources
should be consulted for verification of the information contained herein. 
The City of Goldsboro and the companies contracted to develop these 
data assume no legal responsibilities for the information or accuracy 
contained on this map. It is strictly forbidden to sell or reproduce these 
maps or data for any reason without the written consent of the City of 
Goldsboro.

SITE

CASE NO:
OWNER:
APPLICANT:
REQUEST:
PIN #: 
LOCATION:

REZONING REQUEST:
Z-3-21
Mohammed Ewais
Doyce & Stephen Barnes
From Shopping Center (SC) to General Business (GB)
3519-43-4371
502 Eastgate Drive





J









CITY OF GOLDSBORO 

ORDER DENYING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 

The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, having held a public hearing on 

March 15, 2021 to consider the following Conditional Use Permit application number: 

CU-2-21 A & M Cafe - The property is located at 502 Eastgate Drive C2 and currently zoned 

Shopping Center (SC) this request is subject to the approval of rezoning case #Z-3-21 to change 

from Shopping Center (SC) to General Business {GB) zoning district. 

To deny the request for a Conditional Use Permit# CU-2-21 A & M Cafe for the operation of 

an internet cafe with 18 game units located within the Shopping Center (SC) zoning district, 

having heard all the evidence and arguments presented and reports from City Officials, and 

having received recommendation for denial from the Goldsboro Planning Commission 

pertaining to said application, makes the following findings of fact. 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

The City Council makes the CONCLUSION that the proposed use does not satisfy the general 

conditions imposed on the Council in its deliberations for issuing a Conditional Use Permit 

under Sections 5.4 Table of Permitted Uses; and 5.5.4 Special and Conditional Use Specific 

Regulations; Internet Cafe/Sweepstakes Facilities - Electronic Gaming Operations. Based on 

the evidence and the UDO Ordinance #2017-23 criteria the request failed to meet the following 

minimum requirements: 

1. Such operations are only permitted in the General Business {GB) zoning districts and the 

rezoning request #Z-3-21 Barnes Jewelers was denied.

Based upon the foregoing FINDINGS OF FACT, the City Council makes the CONCLUSION that 

the proposed use does not satisfy the general conditions of the UDO Ordinance #2017-23 

criteria imposed on the Council in its deliberations for issuing a Conditional Use under Sections 

5.4 Table of Permitted Uses; and 5.5.4 Special and Conditional Use Specific Regulations; 

Internet Cafe/Sweepstakes Facilities - Electronic Gaming Operations. 

Upon motion made by Councilmember ______ and seconded by Councilmember 

-----� the Council denied the applicant's request for the operation of an internet cafe 

with 18 game units located within the Shopping Center {SC) zoning district. 

Therefore, because the City Council concludes that all of the general conditions precedent 

to the issuance of a CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT have NOT BEEN satisfied, 

IT IS ORDERED that the application for the issuance of a CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT be 

DENIED. 

Thus ordered this ___ day of ________ _, 2021. 

Chuck Allen, Mayor 

Ronald T. Lawrence, City Attorney 

Page 1of1 



K







31
31

103

83 155

127

73

31

90

150

(461)

(201)

94

156

157
174

100

127

95

94

175

77

96

176

138

92

32

125

98

98

149

198

133

303

178

309

160

107

100

226

257

490

130145

493

418

43

101

101

101

101

43

43

43

43

43

43

101

95

23 20
20

23

101

101

101

101

43

43

43

43

43101

101

11

35 94

88

19

30

43
43

101 43

43

21
21

22
43

101

101

101

9090

43

22

43

43

43

43

43

43

43

27

16

43

10
197

10
1

101

101

82

30

20
43

43

43

43

43

43

43

43

43

43

90

101

101
101

43

43

85

101
35

67

37

26 17

46

43

102

101

101

101

101

101

101
101

41

38

15

87

43

43

43

43

43

43

43

43

101

96

96

43

43

43

44

43

44

101

101

101

36

41

35

71

43

43

43

43

101

101

101

43

25 22
17

26

101

43

43

101

101

43

43

43
23

20

40

43 75

27

36

40

101

101

43

43

101

101

43 95

43

95

20 23

43

43

43

43

43

43

43

101

101

101

101

43
39

43

159

31

73

101

401

18
3

181

29
4

20
9

85

31

167

97

138

131

108

192

1 05

108

34

60

106

154

24

260

315

110

304

116

10 7

275

10
4

10
1

100

111

151

70

60

63.48

(24
0)

152131.20
63.83

523.70

255

241.16

674.42

(80)

300

1 00

331

264.04

176

60

271

908

523

(459)

333.66

100

460

460

29
0

(22
1)

150

153

115

234

585

150

190

(229)

190

200

100

200

120.78

314299.89

60

185

325

49525
7

190

40

264

368

SU
NSET

DR

CUYLER
BEST

RD

TONYA DR

MICHELLE DAWN

DR
GLENDAS DROX

FORD

BLVD

OXFORD DR

0 250 500125
Feet

CU-3-21 NEW HOPE PLACE APARTMENTS
80 UNIT APARTMENT COMPLEX

.

The data represented on this map has been compiled by the best 
methods available. Accuracy is contingent upon the source information 
as compiled by various agencies and departments both internal and
external to the City of Goldsboro, NC. Users of the data represented
on this map are hereby notified that the primary information sources
should be consulted for verification of the information contained herein. 
The City of Goldsboro and the companies contracted to develop these 
data assume no legal responsibilities for the information or accuracy 
contained on this map. It is strictly forbidden to sell or reproduce these 
maps or data for any reason without the written consent of the City of 
Goldsboro.

SITE

CONDTIONAL USE REQUEST;
CASE NO:
REQUEST:
APPLICANT:
OWNER:
LOCATION:
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES:

CU-3-21 
80 unit Apartment Complex
Surber Development & Consulting, LLC.
Robert Gambella
North side of Cuyler Best Rd. between
 Oxford Dr.& Glendas Dr.
1 Full-time / 1 Part-time







CS 1

COVER SHEET

DRAWING INDEX

N
EW

 H
O

PE
 P

LA
C

E

SH
EE

T
D

AT
E

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

PR
O

JE
C

T
SH

EE
T 

 T
IT

LE

DATE: 01/22/2021

ISSUED: PRE APP

SE
AL

S
AR

C
H

IT
EC

T

C
op

yr
ig

ht
 2

02
1 

- C
O

N
SO

LI
D

AT
ED

 D
ES

IG
N

 G
R

O
U

P,
 P

LL
C

 - 
63

1 
D

ic
ki

ns
on

 A
ve

nu
e,

 G
re

en
vi

lle
, N

C
 2

78
34

C

G
O

LD
SB

O
R

O
, N

O
R

TH
 C

AR
O

LI
N

A
C

O
N

SO
LI

D
AT

ED
 D

ES
IG

N
 G

R
O

U
P,

 P
LL

C
63

1 
D

IC
KI

N
SO

N
 A

VE
. G

R
EE

N
VI

LL
E,

 N
C

 2
78

34
PH

O
N

E 
- 9

19
.6

75
.3

55
2

N
EW

 H
O

PE
 P

LA
C

E,
 L

LC

AutoCAD SHX Text
D R A W I N G    I N D E X

AutoCAD SHX Text
LATEST REVISION DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEQNCE. NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CS 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVER SHEET, DRAWING INDEX

AutoCAD SHX Text
A R C H I T E C T U R A L

AutoCAD SHX Text
01

AutoCAD SHX Text
02

AutoCAD SHX Text
03

AutoCAD SHX Text
A 1.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING PLAN - CLUBHOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
04

AutoCAD SHX Text
05

AutoCAD SHX Text
06

AutoCAD SHX Text
08

AutoCAD SHX Text
07

AutoCAD SHX Text
01/22/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
A 1.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING PLAN - BLDG 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING PLAN - BLDG 2 - 1ST AND 2ND FLOORS

AutoCAD SHX Text
A 1.3A

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING PLAN - BLDG 2 - 3RD FLOOR AND ROOF PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
A 1.3B

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING PLAN - BLDG 3 - 1ST AND 2ND FLOORS

AutoCAD SHX Text
A 1.4A

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING PLAN - BLDG 3 - 3RD FLOOR AND ROOF PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
A 1.4B

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING PLAN - BLDG 4 - 1ST AND 2ND FLOORS

AutoCAD SHX Text
A 1.5A

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING PLAN - BLDG 4 - 3RD FLOOR AND ROOF PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
A 1.5B

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS - CLUBHOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A 3.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A 3.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
09

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
A 3.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
A 3.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
A 3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
A 4.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS - BLDG 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS - BLDG 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS - BLDG 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS - BLDG 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT FLOOR PLANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
01/22/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
01/22/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
01/22/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
01/22/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
01/22/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
01/22/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
01/22/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
01/22/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
01/22/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
01/22/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
01/22/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
01/22/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
01/22/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
01/22/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
01/22/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
V I C I N I T Y   M A P

AutoCAD SHX Text
N E W   H O P E   P L A C E

AutoCAD SHX Text
GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
11394

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERT. No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
53666

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
P,

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE









CITY OF GOLDSBORO 

ORDER APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 

The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, having held a public hearing on 

March 15, 2021 to consider the following Conditional Use Permit application number: 

CU-3-21 New Hope Place Apartments - The property is located on the north side of Cuyler 

Best Road between Oxford Blvd. and Glenda's Dr. and currently zoned Residential (R-9) zoning 

district. 

To approve the request for a Conditional Use Permit# CU-3-21 New Hope Place 

Apartments for the construction of an 80 unit apartment complex having heard all the evidence 

and arguments presented and reports from City Officials, and having received recommendation 

for approval from the Goldsboro Planning Commission pertaining to said application, makes the 

following findings of fact. 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

The City Council makes the CONCLUSION that the proposed use does satisfy the general 

conditions imposed on the Council in its deliberations for issuing a Conditional Use Permit 

under Sections 5.4 Table of Permitted Uses; and 5.5.4 Special and Conditional Use Specific 

Regulations regarding multi-family development. 

Based upon the foregoing FINDINGS OF FACT, the City Council makes the CONCLUSION that 

the proposed use DOES satisfy the general conditions imposed on the Council in its 

deliberations for modifications and issuing a Conditional Use Permit under Section 2.2.8 of the 

City of Goldsboro Zoning Ordinance with the following modifications for Conditional Use 

Permit #CU-3-21 New Hope Place Apartments: 

(1) Modification of sidewalk installation and developer will pay fee-in-lieu of $8,280 to 

the City of Goldsboro. 

In addition to the request, an Annexation petition must be submitted to the City of 

Goldsboro as the subject property is located outside the City limits. Since City utilities are 

located within 1,000 ft. of the site, the developer will be required to connect to City water and 

sewer. 

Upon motion made by Council member ______ and seconded by Councilmember 

-----� the Council approved the applicant's request for the construction of an 80 unit 

apartment complex located in the Residential (R-9) zoning district. 

Therefore, because the City Council concludes that all of the general conditions precedent 

to the issuance of a CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT have BEEN satisfied, 

IT IS ORDERED that the application for the issuance of a CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT be 

APPROVED. 

Thus ordered this ___ day of ________ � 2021. 

Chuck Allen, Mayor 

Ronald T. Lawrence, City Attorney 

Page 1of1 



Item L 


	Agenda 4-5-21
	ws Item d Memorial Policy With 2020 Revisions
	ws Item f URP 19
	Item A.1  Minutes 02 15 2021
	MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL HELD
	FEBRUARY 15, 2021
	UWORK SESSION
	The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in a Work Session in the Large Conference Room, City Hall Addition, 200 North Center Street, at 5:00 p.m. on February 15, 2021 with attendance as follows:
	Present: Mayor Chuck Allen, Presiding
	Mayor Pro Tem David Ham
	Councilmember Bill Broadaway
	Councilmember Taj Polack
	Councilmember Brandi Matthews
	UCITY COUNCIL MEETING
	Present:  Mayor Chuck Allen, Presiding
	Mayor Pro Tem David Ham
	Councilmember Bill Broadaway
	Councilmember Taj Polack
	Councilmember Brandi Matthews
	Councilmember Gene Aycock
	Mayor Allen called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

	Item A.2  Minutes 02 24 25 21 retreat
	MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL RETREAT OF MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL HELD
	UFEBRUARY 24, 2021
	The Mayor and Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, for their Annual Retreat beginning February 24, 2021 at 9:00 a.m. in the Large Conference Room, City Hall Addition, 200 North Center Street, Goldsboro, North Carolina with attendance as f...
	Present: Mayor Chuck Allen, Presiding
	Mayor Pro Tem David Ham
	Councilmember Hiawatha Jones
	Councilmember Bill Broadaway
	Councilmember Taj Polack
	Councilmember Brandi Matthews
	Councilmember David Ham
	FEBRUARY 25, 2021
	The Mayor and Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, for their Annual Retreat beginning February 25, 2021 at 9:00 a.m. . in the Large Conference Room, City Hall Addition, 200 North Center Street, Goldsboro, North Carolina with attendance as...
	Present: Mayor Chuck Allen, Presiding
	Mayor Pro Tem David Ham
	Councilmember Hiawatha Jones
	Councilmember Bill Broadaway
	Councilmember Taj Polack
	Councilmember Brandi Matthews
	Councilmember David Ham
	Councilmember Gene Aycock
	Tim Salmon, City Manager
	Melissa Capps, City Clerk

	Item B  Child Abuse Prevention Month Proclamation
	Item C  Week of the Young Child Proclamation
	Item D  Change Order 1 for Wastewater System
	Item E-1  Goldsboro Football Club Agreement
	Item E-2 Goldsboro_Football_Club_Youth_Academy_2021_Edits
	Agreement City of Goldsboro
	5. Insurance
	6. Liability, Indemnification and Waiver
	16. Academy Sponsorship Guidelines


	Item F  Drummers World Street Closing Request
	Item G  Z-1-21 Agenda Memo TC
	Item H  Z-2-21 Agenda Memo TC
	Item I  Z-3-21 Agenda Memo TC
	Item J  CU-2-21 Agenda Memo TC
	Item K  CU-3-21 Agenda Memo TC
	Item L  Women's History Month Proclamation



